
Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA 
Tulsa County Board of Adjustment  

Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
Tuesday January 18, 2022, 1:30 p.m. 

Williams Tower I 
1 West 3rd Street, St. Francis Room 

 
Meeting No. 502 

 
 

INTRODUCTION AND NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

At this Meeting the Board of Adjustment, in accord with and pursuant to applicable 
Board of Adjustment Policies and Procedures, will review, consider, discuss, and may 
take action on, approve, amend, modify, approve with amendment(s) or modification(s), 
deny, reject, or defer any action on any item listed on this Agenda. 
 
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
None. 

 
 
 
 
 

NEW APPLICATIONS 
 
Review and possible approval, approval with modifications, denial or deferral of the 
following: 
 
1. 2943—Chris Lierly 

Variance to permit a detached accessory building to exceed 750 square feet in the 
RS district. (Section 240)  
LOCATION: 1315 South 217th Avenue West 

 
2. 2944-Justin Liekhus 

Variance to permit a detached accessory building to exceed 750 square feet in the 
RS district. (Section 240); Variance to allow a detached accessory building to be 
located in the side yard in an RS district. (Section 420.2.A-2)  
LOCATION: 7111 West 35th Street South 

 
3. 2945—Ryan Strode 

Modification to a previously approved site plan (CBOA-2888) for a church (Use 
Unit 5) in an AG district (Section 310 Table 1).   
LOCATION: 12100 East 171st Street South 
 



Page 2 of 2 

4. 2946—Jennifer Jefferson 
Special Exception to allow Use Unit 5, Community Services and Similar Uses, to 
allow a Youth Day Camp in an AG district (Section 1205); and a Variance from the 
all-weather parking surface requirement (Section 1340.D).  
LOCATION: 14603 South Lewis Avenue East 

 
 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Website: tulsaplanning.org  E-mail: esubmit@incog.org 
 

If you require special accommodations pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, 
please call 918-584-7526. 
 
NOTE: Exhibits, Petitions, Pictures, etc., presented to the Board of Adjustment may be 
received and deposited in case files to be maintained at the Tulsa Planning Office at 
INCOG. All electronic devices must be silenced during the Board of Adjustment 
meeting. 
 
NOTE: This agenda is for informational purposes only and is not an official posting. 
Please contact the Tulsa Planning Office at 918-584-7526 if you require an official 
posted agenda. 

mailto:tulsaplanning.org
mailto:esubmit@incog.org


 

 

Case Number: CBOA-2943 
 
Hearing Date: 01/18/2022 1:30 PM 

 
Case Report Prepared by: 
 
Robi Jones 
 

 
Owner and Applicant Information: 
 
Applicant: Chris Lierly  
 
Property Owner: Lierly, Christopher S & 
Bridget R 
 

 
Action Requested: Variance to permit a detached accessory building to exceed 750 
square feet in the RS district. (Section 240) 
 
 
Location Map: 

 
Tulsa County Comprehensive Land Use Map 

 

 
Additional Information: 
 
Present Use: Residential    
 
Tract Size: 0.33 acres 
 
Location: 1315 S. 217th Ave. W. 
 
Present Zoning: RS 
 
Fenceline/Area: Sand Springs 
 
Land Use Designation: Residential 
 
 
 

 
 

 

CBOA-2943     1.1



AG

RS

AG

IL

IL

OM

RS CG

CG

AG-R

FD

£¤412

W WEKIWA RD

OLD STATE HIGHWAY 51

W 8 ST S

W 14 ST S

W 13 PL S

S 2
17

 W
 AV

E

S 2
22

 W
 AV

E

S 2
21

 W
 AV

E

S 2
20

 W
 AV

E

W 13 ST S

W 12 ST S

W 11 ST S

S 218W
AV E

S 2
17

 W
 PL

S 2
14

 W
 AV

E

S 2
19

 W
 AV

E

S 2
15

 W
 AV

E

W 12 ST S

W 14 ST S

W 11 ST S

S 2
21

 W
 AV

E

S 2
20

 W
 AV

E

S 2
18

 W
 AV

E

S 2
18

 W
 AV

E

19-10 10
0 200 400

Feet oCBOA-2943

SUBJECT TRACT

LEGEND
Sand Springs Corporate Limits

Mannford Corporate Limits

CBOA-2943     1.2



TULSA COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

 
TRS:  9010                                                            CASE NUMBER: CBOA-2943 
CZM:  33             CASE REPORT PREPARED BY:  Robi Jones  
  
HEARING DATE:  01/18/2022 1:30 PM 
 
APPLICANT:  Chris Lierly  
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Variance to permit a detached accessory building to exceed 750 square feet in the 
RS district. (Section 240) 
 
LOCATION:  1315 South 217th Avenue West      ZONED:  RS 
 
FENCELINE: Sand Springs 
 
PRESENT USE: RS      TRACT SIZE:  0.33 acres 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  LT 6 BLK 5, CANDLESTICK BEACH 
 
RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:   
 
Subject Property: None Relevant 

Surrounding Property: 
  

CBOA-2733 March 2019:  The Board approved the request for a Variance to allow a 40’-0” x 40’-0” 
accessory building with an additional ten-foot setback as shown on page 3.34 for the proposed 
accessory building. The building is to be ten feet off the southerly easement, on property located at 
21521 West 14th Street South. 
 
CBOA-2508 July 2014: The Board approved a variance to permit construction of a detached 
accessory building in a side yard located in an RS District; and a variance of the 750 square foot 
requirement for accessory units to allow a 900 square foot accessory building to be built on 
property located at 1333 South 215th West Avenue. 
 
CBOA-2506 July 2014:  The Board approved the request for a Variance of the allowed square 
footage for accessory buildings from 750 square feet to 1,560 square feet, on property located at 
1322 South 217th West Avenue. 
 
CBOA-2429 May 2012: The Board approved a variance to permit a detached accessory structure in 
an RS District larger than 750 square feet; and a variance to permit a detached accessory structure 
in the side yard, on property located at 1325 South 214th West Avenue.  
 
CBOA-2144 January 2005: The Board approved a variance of the allowable 750 square feet for an 
accessory building to allow a 900 square foot accessory building in an RS zoned district, on 
property located at 21609 West 14th Street South. 

 
ANALYSIS OF SURROUNDING AREA:  The subject tract is located in a residential neighborhood 
surrounded by RS zoning. 

CBOA-2943     1.3



 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 

The applicant is before the Board requesting a Variance to permit a detached accessory building to 
exceed 750 square feet in the RS district. (Section 240) 
 
Section 240.2.E permits accessory buildings in the RS district, however, the total square footage of 
all accessory buildings on the lot cannot exceed 750 SF of floor area.  The provision of the Code 
attempts to establish and maintain development intensity of the district, preserve the openness of 
living areas and avoid overcrowding by limiting the bulk of structures.  
 
The applicant provided the following statement: “I am seeking a building variance to build a 24 x 40 
carport style building. I need this size so that I can fit both my home gym equipment and also my 
work tools. Half of the building will be used for our family workout faciality while the other half will 
hold my tools and yard equipment. Both of these activities help me de-stress and give me a 
therapeutic outlet for the tension of work and everyday life I face. If granted this building should not 
cause any impairment to the current neighborhood. Several neighbors have similar metal style 
buildings look very professional and add character to the neighborhood. With this building I will be 
able to deconstruct our small building, that is aged, which I have been using to store lawn 
equipment.” 
 
According to the site plan provided, the applicant is proposing to construct a 24’ x 40’ (960 sq. ft.) 
accessory building at the rear of his property. It will be located in the rear yard. Section 420.2.A.3. 
states the following: Within the rear yard, a detached accessory building shall be located at least 
three feet from any interior lot line. The proposed accessory building complies with the three-foot 
setback requirement. 
 
If inclined to approve, the Board may consider any conditions it deems necessary and reasonably 
related to the request to ensure that the proposed accessory buildings are compatible with and 
non-injurious to the surrounding area.  
 
 
Sample Motion: 
 
“Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Variance to permit a detached accessory building to exceed 
750 square feet in the RS district. (Section 240) 
 
Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet. 
 
Subject to the following conditions, if any: _______________________________. 
 
Finding the hardship to be __________. 
 
Finding by reason of extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances, which are peculiar 
to the land, structure or building involved, the literal enforcement of the terms of the Code would 
result in unnecessary hardship; that such extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances 
do not apply generally to other property in the same use district; and that the variance to be 
granted will not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the purposes, spirit, and 
intent of the Code, or the Comprehensive Plan.” 

 
 

CBOA-2943     1.4



272B-Jennifer Lawson

Action Requested:
ffiimumrequiredfrontagefrom30feetto0feetinanAGDistrict
io perll1it a lot split (Section 207). LOGATION: South of the SW/c of West

Wekiwa Road and South 193'd West Avenue

Presentation:
The application was withdrawn by the applicant

lnterested Parties:
There were no interested parties present

Comments and Questions:
None.

Board Action:
No action required by the Board; for the following property:

E¿291.66 W821,I GOV LT 1 SEC 11 19 IO 7AC, OF TULSA COUNTY' STATE OF

oKLAHOMA ¡ .
? t., F ññn 

t

TILE COPï2733-WillWilkins I

ft

ActionRequested: ' ' ' I

ffinacceSSorybuildingtoexceed750squarefeetinanRS
Distnct (Section 240). LOGATION: 21521West 14th Street South

Prese tation:
William Wilkins,
for being drawn i

Association which

21521West 14th Street, sand springs, oK; apologized to the Board

nto a civil spat regarding the legal standing of the Home Owner's
should have never been a factor. Mr. Wilkins presented documents

to the Board in relation to the Home Owner's Association. Mr. Wilkins stated that he

forwarded additional material for the Board's consideration last week plus copies of five

other previous Board of Adjustment requests for similar action, and not one of the

requests was denied. All have been found to conform to the harmony and spirit of the

neþhborhood. The materials for those requests were all the same, metal buildings. Mr'

Wilkins stated that his request is for nothing more than what has been requested by the

others, some of whom have been in protest of his application. The majority of the

people that are in opposition to his request do not even drive by the subject property,

ãnd'that majority that do have signed a letter of support. Mr. Wilkins stated that he only

seeks to enjoy the same ranks and privileges of others in the neighborhood.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Wilkins if there was any productive discussion between himself

and any of the members who are in opposition in the intervening thirty days. Mr. Wilkins

04lt6l20r9l#467 (2)

CBOA-2943     1.5



0ß^aß - a1 33 tlLt cfIPT
:.

stated that immediately following the last meeting he had a discussion with Mr. Dennis
Strait and his only opposition is that he does not want to look at a metal building across
the street. Mr. Wilkins stated the subject property was for sale for over a year and no
one else seemed to want the property so he purchased it because he could not
purchase the lot to the west of his house. Had he been able to do so he would have
sought to have the building on that lot and Mr. Strait stated that he would not have had
a problem with a metal building located on that property. Mr. Wilkins stated that he also
spoke to Mr. Mock who owns the property behind him, and he does not want a metal
building or any kind of accessory building on the property. Mr. Wilkins stated that he did
speak with other interested people in his end of the neighborhood, and they are in
support of his request to the best of his knowledge. Mr. Wilkins stated that past Board
of Adjustment actions have allowed for such accessory structures approaching almost
1,600 square feet, with the largest being 1,560 square feet that was approved in 2014.
Mr. Wilkins stated that if the Board feels it is necessary he would be willing to go down
to 1,600 square feet, a 40 x 40 structure.

Mr. Charney stated that historically the Board does not delve into legitimacy or the legal
documentation regarding to either HOAs or with regard to the precise construction of
covenants. The Board does care about those but that is not what this Board has been
charged to do whenever they accepted their appointments to the Board. The Board's
inquiry is rather narrow and there are some legal tests that are before the Board that
need to be examined and the Board does their best as a volunteer Board to see
whether a particular application fits against the legal tests the Board is given. The
Board only confines their inquiry to is what people in the neighborhood have to say and
the Board does their best to apply the test to the request. The Board cares immensely
about the legal tests. ln regards to other applications that have come before the Board,
they may be relevant to something in a matter but they are not binding or controlling on
the Board. Facts differ in each case and the Board takes the information and makes as
best a decisions as they can as a volunteer Board.

Mr. Charney stated the purpose in the last continuance in this case was to get a full
Board to hear the case. Mr. Charney stated that Mr. Hutchinson was the Chair at the
last meeting and he asked if there were any new comments or new information in this
case that will make a difference.

lnterested Parties:
Melissa Wilkins, 21521 West 14th Street South, Sand Springs, OK; stated she is Will
Wilkins wife. She stated that in going through some of the previously approved
structures that have been allowed in the neighborhood, one of those applications noted
that there was a boat that had to be stored and a truck that was broken into. Those
type of issues continue in the neighborhood and a large part of why they would like to
have a building is because she has inherited a vehicle and has possession of all her
mother's belongings and she needs storage for all this. Ms. Wilkins stated that she
wants to be able to securely store her belongings on her property and to insure that they
are not being stolen or vandalized. Ms. Wilkins stated that she has done a lot to
maintain a beautiful landscaped yard and that will continue to the proposed accessory

o4lt6t2019l#467 (3)

CBOA-2943     1.6



u5*- a755 FlLt c0PT
building because it will be in her back yard. Ms. Wilkins stated that she has hear$
concerns about devaluation of surrounding property, and when she looks at some of the
surrounding neighbors she is not doing anything to decrease home values that they
have not already done to themselves and how they maintain their homes.

Steven Brown, 21607 West 13th Place, Sand Springs, OK; stated he has iived there for
over 30 years and he has never been robbed or threatened. He does not want the
Board to think the neighborhood is an outlaw community that everyone is worried about.
Mr. Brown stated that Mr. Wilkins has stated that he has the majority of the people
behind him and in favor of his request but there is documentation to prove that is not the
case. This is a nice subdivision.

Rebuttal:
Will W¡lkins came forward and stated he is not painting a lawless picture of his
neighborhood, he knows it is not and that is why he moved there. He enjoys his
community, however, there are cases where work trailers have been stolen and there
are porch pirates. He is trying to find a way that he can safely secure his property, and
not have it piled up in his yard because that will diminish property values. He wants a
nice clean yard.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Wilkins to state the hardship for his request. Mr. Wilkins stated
that under the previous applications the hardship has always been stated "lot size in
relation to accessory structure". lt has always been predicated on two lots of similar
size necessitates the ability to have a larger structure, to have ample storage and not
make the lot look out of context with the neighborhood. By having a one acre parcel,

which is three lots combined, this structure size he believes would be in harmony and
the spirit of the neighborhood. Mr. Wilkins stated that in order to keep with the harmony
and spirit of the neighborhood, the lot size demands a slightly larger structure.

Mr. Hutchinson asked Mr. Wilkinson if this would interfere with addresses in the
neighborhood. Mr. Wilkinson stated that he cannot speak to addresses but all it does is
add land area together, unless there is a reason for addressing the structure facing 13ih

Street, the actual mailing address would remain the same as it is now.

Mr. Hutchinson asked Mr. Wilkins if the shop were brought farther south along the
easement, doesn't he think that would be more in context with the rest of the
neighborhood? With the structure sitting out front and facing a different road it will not
look like it is part of the Wilkins property. Mr. Wilkins stated that from the face of the
asphalt to the face of where he would place the building is 73 feet. According to the site
plan there is 67 feet from the front of the property line to the front of the building as
displayed on the plan. Mr. Wilkins stated that he has a swimming pool in his backyard
and he wants to maintain ground space for his children to be able to olay.

Comments and Questions:
Mr. Dillard stated that in any approval it should be a win-win, and he does not think
anything that this Board does will make everybody happy. There are personality

04lt6l20r9l#467 (4)

CBOA-2943     1.7



Þ

i

oþq.e,733 tllt c0PT
conflicts that have to be put aside so the Board can decide what is to be dóne on the'
land use for the property.

Mr. Hutchinson stated that the only way he could support this request is if the proposed
building were placed back closer to the easement where it looks like it is part of the
house and leaves enough room in the front in the event something ever happens.

Mr. Johnston stated that he drove the neighborhood and this particular building shown
on Exhibit 3.52 is east of the Wilkins property, and in looking at the other applications
that have been made he wonders why there were no other protestants at those cases.
Why are there so many protestants regarding this request? The approved 1,560 square
foot building is one of the larger buildings in the neighborhood, and it sits closer to the
street and it is just east of the subject property. Mr. Johnston stated that he thinks if the
proposed building were pushed back toward the easement and have access from the
front of the existing house it would really be an accessory building to the property.

Mr. Charney stated that an accessory building is accessory to a residential structure in a
residential neighborhood. lf someone were driving on 13th Street the proposed building
would not feel like an accessory building, potentially. To mitigate that, where does it get
access from and potentially moving the building farther south.

Mr. Dillard stated that he sees a concession from the property owner in that he is willing
to cut the size and is willing to move it back, with those two concesssions he can
support this request. Mr. Dillard stated that he does not have a problem with the
applicant having access to the structure in both directions, from his house as well as
from 13th Street.

Board Action:
On MOTION of HUTCHINSON, the Board voted 5-0-0 (Charney, Crall, Dillard,
Hutchinson, Johnston "aye"; no "nays"; no "abstentions"; none "absent") to APPROVE
the request for a Variance to allow a 40'-0" x 40'-0" accessory building with an additional
ten foot set back as shown on page 3.34 for the proposed accessory building. The
building is to be ten feet off the southerly easement. The accessory building is
compatible and non-injurious to the surrounding area. The Board has found the
hardship to be that the applicant has three lots which is almost an acre in size, and it is
an excess amount of square footage in the combined lot configuration, and that the
variance to be granted will not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair
the purposes, spirit, and intent of the Code, or the Comprehensive Plan; for the
following property:

LT 15 BLK 2; LTS 6 & 7 BLK 2, CANDLESTICK BEACH, OF TULSA COUNTY,
STATE OF OKLAHOMA

04116120191#467 (s)

CBOA-2943     1.8



***********d,*

Ms. Jones read the rules and procedures for the Board of Adjustment Public Hearing

UNFINISHED BUSINESS
TILE ü8Pï

2733 - Will Wilkins

Action Requested:
Variance to allow an accessory building to exceed 750 square feet in an RS
District (Section 240). LOGATION: 21521West 14th Street South

Presentation:
No presentation was made by the applicant; he requested a continuance to the April 16,

2019 Board of Adjustment meeting.

Mr. Hutchinson stated that the Board will allow the interested parties to come fonvard to
voice their opinion for the record in case they cannot attend next month's meeting.

lnterested Parties:
Mary Robinson,21670 West 13th Place, Sand Springs, OK; stated she does notwant
to continue this case because she two foster children, an ill aunt, and mentally
challenged brother that she takes care of, and the children get out of school around the
same time as this meeting. She moved to Candlestick Beach in 1991 and purchased
one of the first houses that was built in the addition. There has never been anything
that makes her fear that there would be semi-trucks or two-ton trucks coming into the
neighborhood as Mr. Wilkins would have for his business. People in the neighborhood
have sheds and buildings, and everyone in the community like it as it is. Ms. Robinson
read an opposition letter from the York family who was unable to attend today's
meeting. Ms. Robinson stated that there are people in the neighborhood that have
businesses in their houses like selling Avon or a personal beautician. These are small
businesses. Ms. Robinson stated that Mr. Wilkins has his home location address listed
on the internet as his business, so the neighbors think that if he builds this large building
that eventually he will house his business materials with business vehicles going
through the neighborhood, though Mr. Wilkins has never told the neighbors any
different. Ms. Robinson thinks the proposed building is too big and too much.

Sharon Borchers, 1322 South 2171h West Avenue, Sand Springs, OK; stated she has
taken off work for the last two meetings regarding this case and she thinks it is
important that she attend these meetings though it is causing problems at work. Ms.
Borchers has lived in Candlestick Beach I for seventeen years and for the last ten years
she has been the Treasurer of the Candlestick Beach Home Owner's Association. At
the last meeting the Board advised Mr. Wilkins to meet with the HOA to see if a

03lr9l20r9t#466 (2)

CBOA-2943     1.9



I

?ßÐtÀ-â73' 
" 

tlLE ÛSPI

compromise could be reached, and as today she does not believe Mr. Wilkins has done
so. The only correspondence the HOA has had is a three-page list of demands and
threatening litigation from Mr. Wilkins attorney requesting HOA documents that could be
had at the County Clerk's office. Ms. Borchers stated that as a long-time resident does
not feel that Mr. Wilkins wants to work with the Home Owner's Association or the
neighbors. Ms. Borchers stated she is offended that she and anyone else was accused
of vandalizing Mr. Wilkin's property; the residents are not going to do that.

Steven Brown, 21607 West 13th Place, Tulsa, OK; stated he does not want to have this
case continued because of his wife's medical issues. Mr. Brown stated that at the last
meeting the Board asked Mr. Wilkins to present his site plan to them so dimensions
could be seen and studied, and he is curious whether he has done so.

Ms. Jones stated there are two plans in the agenda packet on pages 2.19 and 2.20. Mr.
Brown stated that the reason he asked is because Mr. Wilkins keeps changing his plans
several times.

Mr. Brown stated that he is concerned about if Mr. Wilkins is approved for the Variance
but he does not comply with the conditions given by the Board? Mr. Hutchinson stated
that Ms. Tosh, the County lnspector, would be the enforcement officer that would
enforce the conditions given by the Board. Ms. Tosh stated the building will need to be
built according to the plans that are submitted. Ms. Tosh stated that whatever plans are
submitted must be approved before the permit is issued, once the permit is issued the
County will follow up to make sure the building is built appropriately, or the owner's
electric will not be released.

Mr. Brown stated that he is concerned about the building being so big, that it will be
hard to make it not look like a commercial building. The building is being placed so that
Mr. Wilkins will need to drive around the block and use a driveway that has been placed
next to a neighbor's house. He is also concerned about the proposed being right in the
middle of the subdivision.

Robert Stotler, 1347 South 22}rh West Avenue, Sand Springs, OK; stated he has been
the President of the Home Owner's Association for less than two years and he is
against the continuance of this case. There are three Variances for buildings that were
built in the neighborhood, and of those three Variances there is not one person that
came to the Board to protest against them; today there five or six people in attendance
and there are numerous signatures against the proposed building. There has not been
one set of plans given to the building committee, which Mr. Wilkins is a member, and he
knows he needs to do so. When an application is filed, staff publishes official public
notices and informs nearby residents and neighborhood associations. Staff then
receives appropriate plans and development policies to formulate the case study and
staff analysis. Not one time on any of the Variances has the Neighborhood Association
been notified; they find out through the grapevine. Mr. Stotler stated that he has spoken
to Robi about notifying the Neighborhood Associations, and she does not know where a
neighborhood association would go to register for a mailing list. ln this case the Home

031r9120191#466 (3)

CBOA-2943     1.10



t ü.

ürelÅ''âF7 ilLr 0SPI
Owner's Association did not know anything was being built because trlr. Wilkins never .

submitted plans. Mr. Stotler asked why the Home Owner's Associations in the County
are not notified.

Ms. Miller stated the City of Tulsa has a Working in Neighborhoods Department that
facilitates the registering of neighborhood associations for the City, and she does not
think the County has anything like that. There is no one organizing or collecting that
information for the County Board of Adjustment or INCOG to have. The information is
not available for them to have.

Mr. Dillard stated the neighborhood is being notified because there are notices mailed to
home owners within a 300-foot radius of a subject property is being notified. With that
many people the Home Owner's Association is totally aware of it because there is
nothing faster than word of mouth.

Mr. Stotler presented a graph that showed home owner's in favor of or not in favor of
the proposed building and explained the shadings on the graph. Mr. Stotler stated that
he researched Novus Homes and found the, business address to be 615 North
Cheyenne Avenue, but that house has been sold to another party. So, he did more
searching and found Novus Homes listed at 21521 West 14th Street, Sand Springs,
which is Mr. Wilkins home address; Mr. Wilkins has stated that he is not going to run a
business out of that house and there is a sign in the front yard of Mr. Wilkins house
promoting his business. Mr. Stotler presented a letter addressed to Mr. Wilkins from the
Candlestick Beach Home Owner's Association, and he read the letter to the Board. Mr.
Stotler read from the neighborhood covenants. Mr. Stotler stated that the proposed
building is the same size as the houses that surround it, so it will be a giant building with
a driveway on another street making it look like a stand-alone building. That is not
harmonious for the neighborhood. Mr. Stotler stated that a hardship cannot be self-
created, and he feels Mr. Wilkins created his own hardship when he purchased the two
lots to build his house and the third lot, he purchased, for placing a 2,000 square foot
building on creating his own hardship. The residents do not want a giant building in the
middle of a neighborhood. Mr. Stotler referred to several photos of existing accessory
buildings in the neighborhood that have brick on them, so they blend into the
neighborhood. Mr. Stotler stated he inherited these problems and he is just trying to
make it right for everyone in the neighborhood and trying to stop the brother-in-law
deals from the past and get down to the rules and regulations.

Dennis Strait, 21521 West 13th Place, Tulsa, OK; stated he lives in front of the subject
site for the proposed building. He is opposed to the continuance because this needs to
be resolved. All the buildings in the area are houses, they are not commercial buildings
and he is afraid that is what this will be. Mr. Strait stated that the driveway that Mr.
Wilkins wants to install will be right in front of his house. Mr. Strait stated that he
believes Mr. Wilkins has a lawn service to tend to his yard so the building is not needed
for lawn equipment. He doesn't understand why the building isn't being built next to Mr.
Wilkins house and facing the beach instead of facing someone's house. The proposed

I

03119120191#466 (4)

CBOA-2943     1.11



f'r
W,A''áryt; 

r tllt CgPf 
I

building will be what he sees when he looks out his tront,,l¡nOow, and he is afraiO tnåt
he will be running his business out of it.

Mr. Hutchinson thanked the interested parties for their comments and stated the Board
will keep them under advisement for the meeting next month.

Mr. Wilkíns asked the Board if he would have an opportunity to speak directly to what
the interested parties discussed today, and then continue the case? Mr. Hutchinson
stated that he prefers not to, otherwise the entire case should be heard today. Mr.
Wilkins consented.

Comments and Questions:
None

Board Action:
On MOTION of DILLARD, the Board voted 3-0-0 (Dillard, Hutchinson, Johnston "aye";
no "nays"; no "abstentions"; Charney, Crall "absent") to CONTINUE the request for a
Variance to allow an accessory building to exceed 750 square feet in an RS District
(Section 240) lo the April 16, 2019 Board of Adjustment meeting with no further
continuances; for the following property:

LT 15 BLK 2; LTS 6 & 7 BLK 2, CANDLESTICK BEACH, OF TULSA COUNTY,
STATE OF OKLAHOMA

NEW APPLICAT¡ONS

2734-Aloha Surface

Action Requested:
Variance to allow 0 feet of frontage on a public street to permit a lot split in an AG
District (Section 207). LOCATION: 3800 East lTlstStreet South

Presentation:
AIoha Surface, 402 East 16th Street, Owasso, OK; stated the property is to be split
according to a trust, and she is the trustee. The existing house will be razed. The
property is 10 acres and it will be split into four pieces. The two rear pieces of property
which will be 2-112 acres each, are not on 171't Street. One of the rear pieces will be
sold to her niece, and a brother will have the other 2-112 acres in the rear. Ms. Surface
stated that she has received permission from the water department to add three taps to
the property. ln generai, the piece of property will stay together within the family, but
because of the trust she has to split the property into four pieces. Ms. Surface stated
there was a survey done allowíng for access easements on both sides of the subject
property, and there are driveways that do back to the rear properties.

03lt9l20tel#466 (s)

CBOA-2943     1.12



density, then there needs to be planned water drainage or water retention for the area

He cannot support this request.

Mr. Crall stated that he thinks this prevents a wildcat subdivision. He would not have a
problem supporting this request.

Mr. Hutchinson stated he could support this request as long as water drainage is

addressed, and there are no future lot splits.

Board Action:
On trttOf¡Ol,¡ of JOHNSTON, the Board voted 3-1-0 (Crall, Hutchinson, Johnston "aye";

Dillard "n"y"; no "abstentions"; Charney "absent") to APPROVE the request for a
Variance of the minimum lot width to permit a lot split (Section 330). The approval is

subject to the County addressing stormwater runoff requirements, and there are no

futule lot splits. The Board finds the hardship that this is a large tract of land and the
property can easily accommodate three houses; for the following property:

SI2 SI2 NW SW LESS W16.5 THEREOF FOR RD SEC 11 2f 13 9.8754CS, OF

TULSA GOUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA

2733-Will Wilkins TILE CûPT
Action Requested:
ffinacceSSorybuildingtoexceed750squarefeetinanRS
O¡str¡ct tsection 240). LOCATION: 21521West 14th Street South

Ms. Ulmer stated that the address on the agenda is listed as West of the NW/c of
West 14th Street South and South 124th Avenue West; it should be South 214th

Avenue West.

Presentation:
Vt/¡ll tfyilkens,21521West 14th Street South, Sand Springs, OK; stated he would like to

build a 40'-0" x 50'-0" accessory building on the subject property located in Candlestick

Beach. He has a total of one acre because he purchased three lots in the

neiglrborhood and combined them into a single parcel. He is requesting relief to build a

structure similar in design, size and scope to some that exist in the neighborhood in

close proximity to his property. The purpose of the out building is for a camper, general

storage and a workshop. The height of the structure will be 19'-0' at the peak gable,

which is r¡.rel! under the -"5-foot permissible by Code. His lot is 42,84A square feet

creating a lot approximately 6.2 times the size of the minimum RS lot. The Code

requirement was created in order to establish and maintain the desired development
intensity and residential character of the district, specifically in terms of preserving

openness between dwellings and other structures. He intends to maintain that

02119120r91#46s (8)

CBOA-2943     1.13



(ÂM_.â1'/33 FIL I t0Pr
openness as the lot it sits on has well more than the minimum required livability square
footage. The Code requires that a detached accessory building shall not be located in
the front or side yard or encroach upon the minimum setback building line. His
structure's placement conforms to all of these as the structure will be located behind the
dwelling on the property. He believes the addition of one structure of this size is more in
harmony with the residential character of the neighþorhood and in keeping with the
Code than three or four separate smaller structures and carports in the middle of the
large open lot. This was previously demonstrated as the hardship in Case #CBOA-
02429 in 2012.

Mr. Hutchinson asked Mr. Wilkins if he planned on doing any commercial business out
of the proposed building. Mr. Wilkins stated that he is not; he does not operate any
business out of his house or out of the shop. The building will house a new camper and
his wife's mother has passed away and her stuff will be stored there, plus personal lawn
equipment. He does not want anything to sit outside of the building.

Mr. Hutchinson asked Mr. Wilkins what materials the building will be constructed from.
Mr. Wilkins stated that it is a pole barn and will be two-tone metal to correspond with his
house and be a modern ranch style. There will be two overhead doors; one 12'-0" and
one 8'-0" in height.

Mr. Hutchinson asked Mr. Wilkins if the other buildings in the neighborhood are of the
same structure. Mr. Wilkins answered affirmatively.

lnterested Parties:
Robert Stotler, 1347 South 22)th West Avenue, Sand Springs, OK; stated he is the
President of the HOA for Candlestick Beach l. Mr. Stotler stated, as the President of
the Candlestick Beach I President, he has heard that the residents are against the
Variance. The signatures on the petition are from the residents within the 300-foot
radius. Mr. Stotler stated that building plans were never submitted to Candlestick
Beach I HOA for approval. Mr. Stotler stated that Mr. Wilkins is a builder and he knows
that he has to submit his plans to the HOA Building Committee; Mr. Wilkins is a member
of the Building Committee. Mr. Stotler stated that Mr. Wilkins made his application on
January 23'd, and on February gth he notified Mr. Wilkins via e-mail to submit his
building plans to the Building Committee for approval. His response was to say that he
would submit his plans on Monday, February 11tt' and they have never been submitted.
Mr. Stotler stated that the owners have voiced theír concerns stating that the proposed
building is too big, no plans have been submitted to the Building Committee for approval
and the building will not blend into the neighborhood. The building is 2,000 square feet
and bigger than the minimum allowance for a house in this development. The houses
around this proposed building are on the average 2,029.6 square feet and that means
the buildino wil! be almost the same size as those houses. Mr'. Stotler stated that he_'.-..,9

was asked by the home owners to develop a petition against the proposed building.
The plans at the County are different than what was submitted to the County Board for
the Variance. The largest building in the neighborhood built as an accessory building is
1,600 square feet. lt does not harmoniously blend into the neighborhood; it looks like a

02lr9l20t9l#46s (9)

CBOA-2943     1.14



oßoA-a1æ ¿'f,ftfl tffifrtr
stand alone building complete with its own driveway. This building was supposed to
look like a house in the middle of the lot with four feet of brick around the base on three
sides with vinyl across the front. The building does not meet the guidelines the County
approved; it was approved May 15,2012. The County gave Mr. Wilkins six months to
complete all the requirements. Mr. Wilkins referenced this building and two others in his

Variance petition for his building at Candlestick Beach as being larger than 700 square
feet. All three buildings were built before Candlestick Beach had a building committee,
therefore, the President and Vice President approved these buildings. At the last
election the home owners reinstated the Building Committee to oversee all new
buildings and to ensure all new buildings conformed to the HOA covenant. There is

nothing that can be done about the other accessory buildings, but we can have a say
about future buildings being built in the neighborhood. This building is going to look like

a conmercial building on a lot in the middle of the neighborhood. The proposed

building does sit in the Wilkins back yard, but it will be on a main street of the
neighborhood and will look like a stand-alone commercial building. The building will be

accessed from a main street, 13th Place. This building will not improve property values
but will bring them down. This building will not harmoniously fit into the neighborhood.

Ghris Burns, 21407 West 14th Street South, Sand Springs, OK; stated his concern is

that he has not seen anything on the building; all he has been told is that it is a 2,000
square foot building. The other buildings that were previously approved were not
completed as the owners were told they needed to be done. Mr. Wilkins' property is

dead center of the block.

Ron Vanlandingham, 1325 South 214th Street, Sand Springs, OK; stated that his

building was not built as it was approved. As he was installing the brick, he did contact
the Building Committee, and he did not realize he had to come back before the Board of
Adjustment to request a 42" brick wall instead of a 48" brick wall, and he did receive
approval to cut the brick wall down because it looks better. The building committee also
told him that he did not need to install the vinyl siding either. Mr. Vanlandingham stated
that years ago he was the HOA President twice and the Vice President twice and he did

send a letter explaining everything that goes on in the neighborhood. There is a ruling
party, and if you are a part of that ruling party or part of the click, you can do anything
you want to do. The elections are prearranged. There is not an honest vote. There are

io rany things wrong with what is happening in the neighborhood. lf you stand against
the ruling party, as he is doing now, you risk vandalism like the Wilkins have
experienced. The Wilkins are good people and he does not see a problem with the
proposed building. The covenant does not say anything about a home owner needing
to submit building plans to the Building Committee before receiving an approval.

Jay Castoe, 1333 South 215th WestAvenue, Sand Springs, OK; stated he has a 30'-0"
x 30'-0" shop behind a meta! fence and his residence backs up to a pasture. At this
present time, he was opposed to the building until he spoke to Mr. Wilkins. When Mr.

Wilkins told him that it would be over 60 feet from the main road and that the fence
would encompass the front of the building so it looks like it will be tied together. Mr.

Wilkins ensured that there would be landscaping done to make the property look nice.

02l19l2or9l#46s (r0)

CBOA-2943     1.15



cþ,v'å'/'F FIL¡ CSFT
Mr. Castoe stated the reason he has a fence around his property is because he likes
junk; he is a junker and hides it from the neighborhood. lf a person is worried about
what their view is going to be, buy the property.

Dennis Strate,21521West 13th Place, Sand Springs, OK; stated he isthe personthat
will be suffering the most because his kitchen window will look right out to this building.
The plans he has seen showed three doors, two overhead garage doors and a personal
door. The measurement he has is 23'-6" from the ground level to the peak and that is a
tall building. Mr. Strate stated that his house is only about six months old and if he had
known he was going to have this problem, he may have purchased that lot. He did not
think anyone would approve building a building such as this in the neighborhood. He
does not understand why the applicant does not build the building right next to his
house because he has the lot to do so.

Rebuttal:
W¡ll W¡lkins came fonvard and stated that the plans that were submitted has had a
change in the height because the truss was re-engineered to bring it down so the
building will now be 19'-0" maximum height to the top of the gable peak; there will be
16'-0'side walls.

Mr. Crall asked Mr. Wilkins about the plans he keeps referring to because the Board
does not have a copy of any plans. Mr. Wilkins stated he submitted a set of plans to the
permit office.

Mr. Wilkins stated that when he first moved into the neighborhood he asked if there was
a home owner's association and requested a set of by-laws if there was. What he
received was an e-mail with a patch work of various instruments. As time has gone on,
he is no longer on the Building Committee, and he told Mr. Stotler that he would no
longer be on the committee because of issues, and he has now engaged an attorney to
review the documents to support if there is in fact a HOA. ln an HOA a certificate of
declaration actually has to spell out within as a covenant that there will be an HOA
created at a certain percentage of ownership interest transfer. That is not within the
declaration. Therefore, his attorney cannot find information to support any of this. Mr.

Wilkins stated that he has now served the officers of the association with a request of
documents to support that. No matter what, under the declaration it makes a distinction
between dwellings and out buildings; dwellings being houses with two-car garages and
there is nothing in the declaration that says an out building is subject to review. The
reason he did not build on the lot east of his house is because he had to install a septic
system with 550 feet of lateral line that is maintained on that lot. The parcel of land that
was chosen for the subject building was on the market for over a year and no one
purchased it to protect any view, Mr. Wilkins stated that he is trying to be as giving as
he ean by moving the subjeet building to the back of the lot which will diminish any site
lines from the street; it is 67'-0" back from the front of the property along 13th and it is
well within the boundaries of the side lot lines.

02n9120191#46s (tt)

CBOA-2943     1.16



(M..A.I 5' FILI 8TFÏ
Mr. Hutchinson asked Mr. Wilkins if he planned on erecting a fence around the building.
Mr. Wilkins answered affirmatively. Mr. Wilkins stated the plan is to landscape with fruit
trees and with landscaping in the front and down the sides.

Mr. Hutchinson asked Mr. Wilkins if he planned on installing wainscoting on the building.
Mr. Wilkins stated that was not his intention because it does not fit the design of his

house.

Mr. Johnston asked Mr. Wilkins what the easements between the house and the
building contained. Mr. Wilkins stated those easements contain electrical utility lines,

water lines and gas service.

Mr. Hutchinson asked Mr. Wilkins how he would be accessing the building. Mr. Wilkins
stated there will be one concrete driveway off 13th to the main garage door.

Ms. Miller asked Mr. Wilkins if there would be a gate and a fence at this access point.

Mr. Wilkins stated that his intention is to bring the fence in line with the neighbor's fence
and will not screen the front of the building.

Mr. Crall stated that his concern is he keeps hearing the phrase "the intent is" but the
Board does not have anything to see so they are trying to picture what the intent is but
yet there is no documentation to show that. lt would be nice to see what the building is,

what is the fencing, what is the landscaping, and what is the intent. Mr. Wilkins stated
that he would have provided it had it been requested.

Mr. Johnston asked Mr. Wilkins what the two smaller buildings located in the southwest
corner of the lot that are not on the subject site. Mr. Wilkins stated that one is a small
metal storage building and the other is a lean-to on the property next to his property that
is owned by the York's

Mr. Johnston asked Mr. Wilkins why he did not build up to the utility easement. Mr.

Wilkins stated that he wanted to keep a space for a garden, but he could pull the
building back a little more off the street but that adds more driveway. He also wants
yard space for his children to enjoy.

Mr. Johnston stated that he has two issues. One is that it seems like if the garage was
moved southwest it would be tucked in closer to where the building is pulling it up to the
setback requirement for the house. The other issue is because the site originally was
intended to be a residential site, the accessory building is usually at the back of a
residence not the side, and he is having a problem with it being placed as far out to the
north as it is. Mr. Wilkins stated that the lot has been combined about a month ago, so

it is one L shaped parcel. Under the eode, an aeeessory structure is not typically seen
to the front or to the side of a dwelling, but as an L shaped lot the accessory building is
now being placed on the back of the parcel. Mr. Johnston stated that to him this does
comply as an accessory building.

02119120191#46s (r2)

CBOA-2943     1.17



(âd -â,|et FlLt c0F,

Ms. Tosh stated that has also been the County's concern. When there is a lot
combination, an accessory building would still sit to the back of the house and this is
sitting on another street with another drive off that street.

Mr. Wilkins stated that he was allowed to combine the property into one parcel and the
subject site is now considered the rear yard, and there are other buildings in the
neighborhood that are similar.

Mr. Johnston asked Mr. Wilkins what the width of the building is. Mr. Wilkins stated the
building is to be 40'-0'x 50'-0"; 40'-0" east to west and 50'-0' north to south.

Mr. Crall stated that all the questions the Board has asked would have been answered
with a site plan, so the Board could actually see what is being discussed. Mr. Wilkins
asked the Board if they would like to continue this for 30 days? Mr. Dillard asked Mr.
Wilkins if he was requesting a continuance. Mr. Wilkins answered affirmatively.

Mr. Hutchinson suggested to Mr. Wilkins that he speak with the Home Owner's
Association due to the animosity between the parties.

Mr. Johnston stated that he would like to see the building turned 90 degrees, see it
pushed back to the southwest, see where the driveway access is going to be located,
see where the fencing is going to be placed, and see what the landscaping plan is going
to be. Mr. Wilkins stated that if he does turn the building 90 degrees and pull it back to
the southwest, he will block any remaining view of the beach from his neighbor's house.
Mr. Dillard stated that the applicant should do his best to see if the neighbors and the
Home Owner's Association are in agreement with the proposed plans, and if they are,
come back and the Board will look at the plans for consideration.

Comments and Questions:
None,

Board Action:
On MOTION of DILLARD, the Board voted 4-0-0 (Crall, Dillard, Hutchinson, Johnston
"aye"; rro "nays"; no "abstentions"; Charney "absent") to CONTINUE the request for a
Variance to allow an accessory building to exceed 750 square feet in an RS District
(Section 240) to the March 19,2019 Board of Adjustment meeting to allow the applicant
time to provide a site plan to the Board for consideration; for the following property:

LT 15 B,LK 2; LTS 6 & 7 BLK 2, CANDLESTICK BEACH, OF TULSA COUNTY'
STATE OF OKLAHOMA

*********lr***

OTHER BUSINESS
None.

02lr9l20t9l#46s (r3)

CBOA-2943     1.18



There interested parties present.

Mr. Osborne Mr. West if there were
parking. Mr. West that normally those
temporary stand and

Mr. Scmidt stated that a
the fíreworks stand customers

Board Action;
On MOTION of HUTCHINSON,
Osborne, Walker "eye"; no no
request Íor a

July

ts for gravel or paved

District Section 310 , Table 1). fireworks will be
15th to 4t¡t, opening at

are waived because this is a
surface is wanted at other times of the year,

business next to the stand and he allows
his rking lot.

voted 5-0-0 (Charney, Dillard, Hutchinson,
"; none "absent") to f!!Q!! the

to permit a rks stand (Use Unit 2) in the AG

0:00
allowed to ooerate
P.M. June 15th th rough July

from June

znd. Hours of operation uly 00be A.M. to 12:00 midnight; for
the following property:

N273 NW gW SW s223 N273 Wr95.34 & LESS BEG & 195.348 NWC
NW SW SW TH 1 E4Ê2.96 567.44 W462.66 POB FOR HWy SEC 24 22 12
2.394CS, OF COUNry, STATE OF OKLAHOMA

ilLE tüpY
Action Reouested;
Varianæ to permit the construction of a detached accessory building in a side yard
located in an RS District (Sec'tion 420.2.4.2); Valiance of the 750 square foot
requirement for accessory units to allow a 900 square foot accessory building to be
built (Section 240.2.E). LOCATION: 1333 South 215tn West Avenue

Presentation:
Jay CaBtoeJ33S South 215th WestAvenue, Sand Springs, OK; stated he would líke to
build a 30 x 30 detached shop beside his house. After the shop is constructed he would
like install a 20 x 2A fcrol awning on the north side of proposed shop.

Mr. Charney asked if the awning is like a carport, Mr. Castoe answered affirmatively.

Mr. Walker asked Mr. Castoe what he would be using the shop for. Mr. Castoe stated
that he has hobbies and that is where he will be for those hobbies.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Castoe Íf he would working in the shop, doing any work of any
sort for pay ü commercial purposes. Mr, Castoe stated that he would not.

a7nst20t4t#410 (8)

-3 .to

CBOA-2943     1.19



oÆA- oTfol t il-f, ttlPY
Mr. Walker stated that Mr. Castoe has quite a bit of outside storage. Mr, Castoe stated
there are two detached sheds and he plans to keep the metal shed. Mr. Castoe stated
that he owns a 1929 Chevy that he wants to restore and two trailers. lf he is working on
his hobbies in the building he can place the trailers on the carport area to keep them out
of the weather.

Mr. Hutchinson asked Mr. Castoe if the carport would be open. Mr. Castoe answered
affumatively.

Mr. Osborne asked Mr. Castoe if the three separate lots depicted in the drawing in the
Board's agenda packet were tied together. Mr. Castoe answered affirmatively,

Ms. Miller asked Mr. Castoe if he had gone through the lot combination process. Mr.
Castoe stated that he paid his fees and went through the process for the lot
combination.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Castoe if he had heard anything from the owner of the pasture
near his property. Mr. Gastoe stated that he has not heard anything from that owner.
Mr. Charney asked if anyone around him had spoke to him about what he was wanting
to do. Mr. Castoe stated that he had spoke to a couple of the neighbors and they do not
have any problems with what he is proposing to do.

Mr. Osborne asked Mr. Castoe what the building is to look like. Mr, Castoe stated the
building will be a metal red{ron buílding that will be matched to look like the other metal
building on the property, and it will be close to matching the home,

lnteresûod Parties;
There were no interested parties present.

Comments and Questions:
None.

Board Actlon;
On MOTION of CHARNEY, the Board voted 5-0-0 (Charney, Dillard, Hutchinson,
Osborne, Walker "aye"; no "naysn; no "abstentions"; none "absenf') to AEPEQYE the
request lar aVariance to permit the conetruction of a detached accessory building in a
side yard located in an RS District (Section 42A,2,A,2); Varíance of the 750 square foot
requirement for accessory units to allow a 900 square foot accessory building to be built
(Section 240.2,F), The hardship for the Variances for the detached accessory building
and open carport be placed in the side yard is the unugual configuration of the three lots
that are tied together, as they run more north-south than they do east-weet, The size of
the lot is of such that an eccessory building of that nature would not be out of character
architecturally with the balance of the neighborhood. The new detached accessory
building will have an open attached carport with a concrete floor. There ís to be no
commercial use; for the following property:

07l15t20t4l#4rc Q"
3, rl

CBOA-2943     1.20



frj $t r. I]üP Y
eåo^ - o75o8

LT 12.14 BLK 3, CANDLESTICK BEACH, OF TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF
OKLAHOMA

*,r*'t*,*,*******

None.

* 't,t't*lt**tr*tt
\\

'*ttrtt, 'r, *,t

****** ** ***

There being no further business, the m adjou

Date approved:

at2:20 p.m.

hair

**

None.

07ltsl20r4/#410 (10\

3,9
CBOA-2943     1.21



tlme to the Board with a satiefac'tory private road or some eort of
roadway easement. Mr. Charney that Mr. Osborn even

seek to make enrtain there is legal to the subjec't property,
because the rd needs the technicaldocument.

Mr. Walker that Tulsa County does not a dedication to üe road right-oi-
way unlese the is brought up to the County Mr, Pareells stated that was
too expensive to he stopped, and nor

of thie generated by d
is discussing the middle of a

wildcat subdívision. this wildcat subdivislon , end that is
wlry the 1987 request nixed.

Mr. Chamey súated this an example selling olî Tsve acre tracts without the
engineering and coneepond road He thinks ¡ather than denying the
applícante request today, he
would allow the applicant to

this case for a 30 or 60 day period. This

and to seek legal counsel. He
everyone involved, starting with Mr. Parsells,
Osborn to understand what he is getting into

and what is there before he inveets uilding a houee. He also wants Mr. Osborn lo
understand the difference roadway eaeement with maintenance
responsibilitiee and a publicly
County.

that has been accepted by the

Commentc and Questione;
None.

Board Actionr
On tOTlOl{ of , the Board voted 5-0-0 (C , Ðtllard, Hutchinson,
Osbome, Walker "aye'; "nays'; no "abstentions'; none to @MUE the
request lor a Vananæ reduoe the reguired 30 feet of on a publie road or
rlghtoÍ rvay to Olæt 2O7l lor a period of 30 days, which would be the August

meetng; for the following property:19,2014 Board of

wr2 sw NE gE 35 l9 l0 sACS, OF TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA

Mr.
the

2506-Rlchad Botcheru

steted that sínce Mr. Osborn cannot present the with an easement,
want to continue thie case for a 30 day to allow the applicant

r rL t t0PT
Action Rcouecûed;
Variance of the allowed square footage for accessory buildings from 750 square
feêt to 1,560 sguare feet (Section 240.2.É). LOCATION: 1322 South 217lñ West
Avenue

Prerenhüon:
n¡elr gõrcñerr,1322 South 217s. West Avenue, Sand Springs, OK; stated he hae an
existing 24 x30 buiHing, and had a portrable building next to it with a carporl. He has

07ßs/2014t#410 (5)

5.q
CBOA-2943     1.22



'¡ßôA-o¿5oû tüLfl 80Pï
removed the carport and the portable building and he would like to ereci an additíonal
24 x36 melal building to Etore his boats, truck and gardening equipment.

Mr. Osborne asked Mr. Borchers iÍ the new building was to be a garage, Mr. Bordters
etatod that it will baeicâlly be a work shop.

Mr. Charney asked stai¡'É the exísting building wa8 non@nforming. Mr. West stated
that a 750 sguare foot building is allowable in the rear yard, so the existing building b
legal. The appliænt needs relief Íor the second buildíng,

Mr. Borchers stated that there areß¡to lots and lhey are tied together. M¡, Walker st¡ated

that the drawing in the Board's agenda packet shows that the building is only lrve læt
oîf lhe back, Mr. BorcherE etated there is a 15 foot easement in lhe rear. Mr. Walker
stated that the rear yard setback for the District is 20 ieet. Mr. West stated thal is lor a
dwelllng, An accessory building can be withín five Íeet of the property line.

Mr. Chamey asked Mr. Borchers to describe the proposed building. Mr. Borchers
stated that it will be like a carporl but enclosed. He only wantrs to be able to keep his
vehicles and garden equipment out of the weather.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Borchers if any ol hís neighbors, especially the ones closest to
the proposed building, have any objec-tions to the proposal. Mr. Borchers stated that he
is not aware oÍ any objections. Mr. Charney asked Mr. Borchers rt he had a chance ûo

visit with the neighbors. Mr. Borchers strated that the letters were mailed out notiffing
the neighbors. Mr. Charney asked Mr. Borchers if he had talked to them. Mr. Borchers
stated that he had not.

Mr. Walker sûated that he had visíted the site and Mr. Borchers hae an immaculate
place, and what he is proposing ie going to be a greal improvement. There are oúher
properties in the arealhal.are not ag well kept as Mr. Borchers,

lnteresüed Parties:
There were no interested parties present.

Commenþ and Questions:
None.

Board Action:
On ltlOTlON of WALKER, the Board voted 5-0-0 (Charney, Dillard, Hutchinson,
Osbome, Walker "aye"; no "nays"; no nabstentions"; none "absenf) to !ll$Q[þ the
reguest lor aYarianæ of the allowed sguare footage for accessory buildinge from 750
square feet to 1,560 square feet (Section240.2.E) with the hardship being the oversized
lot, two tied together, and the two lots forever joined together. The Board finds this will
be harmonious and with the spirit of the neighborhood; for the folloring property:

071t5/2014/#410 (o
J. [O

CBOA-2943     1.23



ehgb-o15oL
F¡[. T STPY

LTS 2 & 3 BLK 6, CANDLESTICK BEACH, OF TULSA COUI{TY, STATE OF
OKLAHOMA

2057-Brent SchmidÍ

Actlon Reque¡úed;
Soecial Exceotion to permit a firworks stãnd (Use Unit 2l in lhe AG District
(Sec'tion 310, Table 1). LOCATION: E of the NE/c of North Cincinnati Avenue
and Highway 20

Presenúation:
Brent Schmidt P. O. Bax255, Skiatook, OK; no Íormal presentration was made by the
applicant but he was available for any questions.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Schmidt if he had a fireworks stand on the site before. Mr.
Schmidt stated he has had one for the last two yearÊ. Last year he received a permit
from the City of Skiatook, and this year when he tried to obtain a permit he found thE
site is County property. Mr. West issued a permit with provision that he appear before
the Board of Adjustment.

Mr. Charney aeked Mr. Schmidt if he has any problems with the ingress or egress from
the site. Mr. Schmidt stated there have been no problems.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Schmidt if he has received any complaints from the neighbors or
anyone. Mr. Schmidt stated that he has not. One of the neighbors, to the east, did call
because she was concerned about him erecting a building on the property.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Schmidt when he wanted to have the fireworks stand
operational. Mr. Schmidt stated that he wanted to have it for the 4b oi July each year.

Mr. Ghamey asked Mr. Schmidt what were his hours of operalion for the last couple of
years. Mr. Schmidt stated that on the 3d an 4th he has been open until mídnighi, and
the rest of the time until 10:00 P.M. while opening al7:00 or 8:004.M.

Mr. Charney asked if there was a residence or commercial business near the stand.
Mr. Schmidt stated that it is a commereial business. The closest residence is to the
east and about 1/8 mile away.

Mr. Osborne asked Mr. Schmidt how many days before the 46 of July did he open his
stand. Mr. Schmidt stated that he normallyopens about ten days priorto the 4h.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Schmkft if he closed the stand on the 5h of Juty. Mr. Schmidt
stated that he closes for the season on the nþht of the 4th.

07nsnu4/#410 (î
5.TI

CBOA-2943     1.24



property, 15131 shall be maintained, whet is through private efforts or
through efforts with
suitable for standard

County, for reasonable appropriate use for truck and
traffic. This I exception wíll have a time limit of

one year from today's date, May 2012, ebris on the property is to be depleted
or removed. Fínding that the app special exception, the Special Exception

the Code, and will not be injurious to thewill be in harmony with the spirit and
neighborhood or otherwise d the ic welfare; for the followin g property:

GOVLTS346&8&27A¡C RETED LAND S BEG SWC GOV LT 4 TH
N466.69 E466.69 5466.69 .69 POB & LESS BEG & 92.t5E SWC SE

sE157.78 5164.42
UNTY, STATE OF

TH NEr03.37 NE163.69 80.39 F,266,67 E501 .27 E
wt991.50 To PoB s 19 17 14 119.084CS, OF TULSA C
OKLAHOMA

****'t r,*'* *****

NEW APPLICATIONS

F II. E TffiI'YGase No. 2429-Ronnie VanLandinoham

Action Reouested;
Variance to permit a detached accessory structure in an RS District larger than 750
square feet (Section 240.2.E); Variance to permit a detached accessory structure
in the side yard (Section 42A.2.A.s). Location: 1325 South2l4tn WestAvenue

Presentation:
nonn¡e Vanl-andingham , 13255 South 214th West Avenue, Sand Springs, OK; stated
he has joined two lots together. He has visited with all the neighbors and explained to
them what he wants to do and why he wants to do it. The side yard variance request is
because he has a GRDA non-active power line in the back yard with a 145'-0'
easement so he cannot build anything in the back yard. The reason he wants to build a
larger building, larger than 750 square feet, the building will have the appearance of a
house in the middle of the lot instead of a small ouþbuilding in the middle of the lot. The
building will be a steel building on a steel frame, with a four foot brick wall around three
sides. There will also be vinyl siding across the front of the building. Eleven out of the
twelve neighbors within the 300'-0" radius are in favor of his request being approved,
and the twelfth neighbor lives about 250'-0' away from the subject property. The home
owners association has also seen his proposed plan and they have given their approval
for the building pending the approval from the Board of Adjustment.

Mr. Walker asked what Mr. VanLandingham planned to do with the carport and the
additional storage building in the backyard. Mr. Vanlandingham stated that he had
installed the carport to protect his boat but they are still deteriorating, and that is one of
the reasons for the proposed buildíng. The addítional storage building was on the
property when he purchased the house and he plans to demolish that building.

asns20t2/#384 (9\

J.\&
CBOA-2943     1.25



lnterested Parties;
There were no interested parties present.

Comments and Suestions:
None.

0/)oÀ 
-N'4

F!L T TfrP Y

Board Action:
On MOTION of OSBORNE, the Board voted 5-0-0 (Charney, Dillard, Draper, Osborne,
Walker "aye"i no "nays"; no "abstentions") to AFPROVE the request for a Variance to
permit a detached accessory structure in an RS District larger than 750 square feet
(Section 240.2,81; Variance to permit a detached accessory structure in the side yard
(Section 420.2.A,s). The new building is not to be larger than 1,600 square feet, The
approval of the accessory structure in the side yard is due to the exceptional conditions
placed upon the applicant due to restrictive easements on the property related to the
existing powerline structures, The existíng carport and storage facility on the property
shall be demolished or removed no later than six months after the completion of the
new building; for the following property:

Lots 3 and 4 BLK 3, CANDLESTICK BEACH, OF TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF
OKLAHOMA

Gase No. 2430-Glenn Harden

to allow a temporary mobile h ín an AG District (Section 310);
Request to
Location: 1

the time limit from two to three years (Section 310.6).
4ltt Street South

Presentation;
Glenn Harden, 16709 West st Street, Spríngs, OK; stated that approximately 20
years ago his brother and o the subject property. Mr. Harden, with his
mother, then moved onto the live in a second mobile home. Since then his

way, and the brother's wife still lives on themother and his brother have
property, Mr. Harden's sister-ín-l cu lives in a double-wide mobile home on the
property and has asked him to back the property to help her. He would like
to do so and move a mobile into the s where the second mobile home was
previously located.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. arden if there are other ín the area, and Mr
Harden stated that are several. Mr. Charney then Mr. Harden if he knew of
other lots in the area held two mobile homes on the same Mr. Harden was not
quite sure íf there
property.

road west of there, but he thought there might be on the

0sltsl2012l#384 (to)

3,13
CBOA-2943     1.26



COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
MINUTES of Meeting No. 310

Tuesday, March 21,2006,1:30 p.m.
County Commission Room

Room 1 19
County Administration Building

MEMBERS PRESENT MEMBERS ABSENT STAFF PRESENT OTHERS PRESENT

Hutson, Chair
Dillard, Secretary
Tyndall
Walker

Charney, Vice Chair West, Co. lnspector

e for an accessory building in an
220th Aven

Butler
Cuthbertson

The notice and agenda of said meeting were posted at the County Clerk's office, County
Administration Building, Wednesday, March 15, 2006 at 3:17 p.m., as well as in the
office of lNCoG,2o1 W. sth St., Suite 600.

After declaring a quorum present, Chair Hutson called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m.

MINUTES

On MOTION of Tyndall, the Board voted 4-0-0 (Walker, Tyndall, Dillard, Hutson,
"aye"; no "nays"; no "abstentions"; Charney "absent") to APPROVE the Minutes of
February 21,2006 (No. 309).

********

*************

Case ìlo,2199
Action Requested:

Variance of the maximum permitted square footag
RS district (Section 240.2.8),located: 1372 South

Presentation:
Leo Crole.", 1382 South 22}th West Avenue, Sand Springs, proposed
to construct a building as an annex to the house for He

submitted an application to combine his two lots to comply with the code for
the square footage of the building. He provided a petition of su phs

,g,V
03:21:06:310 (1)

and a letter of support (Exhibits A-1, A-Z and A-3).

CBOA-2943     1.27



Comments and Questions:
Mr. Walker asked if utilities would be connected to the building. Mr. Croley replied
they would only have electricity to the building, no plumbing or gas. He also
explained they are building it with a second story for the storage because of the
history of the river overflowing the banks. The windows are built high not lower like
a house.

lnterested Parties:
There were no interested

Board Action:
On MOTION of Walker, the Board voted 4-0-0 (Wal
"aye"; no "nays"; no "abstentions"; Charney "absent") to
the maximum permitted square footage for an accessory
(Section 240.2.8), subject to a lot combination ot the two

parties who wished to speak.

, Dillard, Hutson,
a Variance of

in an RS district
not to be used

for a dwelling, finding the combination of the lots allows for
the building, on the following described property:

re footage of

LT 12 BLK SCANDLESTICK BEACH, Tulsa County, State of Oklahoma

Gase No.2200
Action Requested:

Special Exception to permit a child care facility (Use Unit 5) in an RS district; and a
Variance of the 25 ft. building setback from an abutting R zoned property, located:
4840 West 45th Street South.

Presentation:
Shirley Kent, 4840 West 45th Street, proposed to open a child care facility. The
existing accessory building is now used for storage but would be converted to a
day care for up to twenty children. She pointed out there is easy access.

Comments and Questions:
Mr. Hutson noted the unanimous support of the neighbors. Mr. Hutson also
commented the setback would be in compliance with the zoning code.

lnterested Parties:
There were no interested partíes who wished to speak

Board Aetion:
On MOTION of Tyndall, the Board voted 4-0-0 (Walker, Tyndall, Dillard, Hutson,
"aye"; no "nays"; no "abstentions"; Charney "absent") to APPROVAL a Special
Exception to permit a chíld care facility (Use Unit 5) in an RS district; and a

Variance of the 25 ft. building setback from an abutting R zoned property to the
existing 7 y2ft., finding this is a transitional neíghborhood; when it was built it was

tt,1
03:21:06:310 (2)

CBOA-2943     1.28



COUNTY BO ENT
MINUTES of N 96

Tuesday, January 1 1:30 p.m,
County Comm

Room 1 1

County Admin

MEMBERS SENT MEMBERS ABSENT AFF PRESENT OTHERS PRESENT

The notice and agenda of said were posted at the County Clerk's office, County

Walker, Chair
Hutson, Vice Chair
Dillard, Secretary
Tyndall
Charney

Charney "

Minutes of ber 21 ,2AA4 (No. 295).

********

***rf****

Alberty
Butler
Cuthbertson

West, Co. lnspector

to APPROVE the

Administration Bui Friday a 14, 2004 at 1:30 p.m., as well as in the Office
of INCOG,201 W ,su 600

After declaring a quorum t, Chair Wa called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m,

lding,
5th st

MINUTES

On MOTION Tyndall, the Board voted 5-0-0 (Walke l, Dillard, Hutson,

; no "nays"; no "abstentions"; no "abs

Case No.2144
Action Requested:

Variance of the allowable 750 sq, ft. for an accessory building to allow a 900 sq, ft.
accessory building in an RS zoned district,21609 Wes;t 14th Street South.

NEUT APPLICATTONS

lr,esentation:-Larry Br¡sh, 21609 West 14th Street South, Sand Springs, Oklahoma, stated he

maintains the lawns at Candles Stick Beach. He needs storage space for the lawn

equípment. The homeowners' association is in support of this application.

{)t:I3:05:296 (1)

3.f q
CBOA-2943     1.29



comments and euestions c9tî\"[À
Mr. Walker stated that it appeared the building is already built, and asked if they
just wanted to add to the existing building. Mr. Bush replied that the building is
already up and he needed relief to keep it this size. Mr. Walker asked for the
hardship. Mr. Charney noted the lot is approximately 101'by 154', which is larger
than most RS lots.

lnterested Parties:
ïhere were no interested parties present who wished to speak.

Board Action:
On MOTION of Hutson, the Board voted 5-0-0 (Walker, Tyndall, Dillard, Charney,
Hutson "aye"; no "nays"; no "abstentions"; no "absences") to' AppROVE a
Variance of the allowable 750 sq. ft. for an accessory building to allow a 900 sq. ft.
accessory buílding in an RS zoned district, finding the increased land area, on the
followíng described property:

LT 2 BLK 2 CANDLESTICK BEACH, Tulsa County, State of Oklahoma

*********

No.21

of requíred rear yard setback from 40 feet to 15 feet ermit an
d building in an AG district, SECTION 32A.2.A.2 - Use U , 580 South
221st West.

Presentation
Jerry Oakes, South 221"t Avenue West, Sand Sp gs, Oklahoma proposed
to move the a buílding fifteen feet from rear property line. The
presence of lateral a natural run-off, and a 1 year old red oak tree are the
hardship for this varia He has spoken the neighboring property owner
and she is in favor of the ícation

Cornments and Questions:
Mr. Tyndall asked the location of th ity lines. Mr. Oakes replied that the utilities
are at the front of the house. Mr asked for the difference in the elevation
from the house to the propo site of building- Mr. Oakes replied there is
about a six to eight foot d

lnterested Parties:
There were no parties present who wished k.

Board Action;
On Hutson, the Board voted 5-0-0 (Walker, Tyndal llard, Charney,

aHutson tt no "nays"; no "abstentions"; no "absences") to

0l:13:05:296 {2) 3. \5
CBOA-2943     1.30



S 2
16

 W
 AV

E

£¤412

W WEKIWA RD

OLD STATE HIGHWAY 51

W 8 ST S

W 14 ST S

W 13 PL S

S 2
17

 W
 AV

E

S 2
22

 W
 AV

E

S 2
21

 W
 AV

E

S 2
20

 W
 AV

E

W 13 ST S

W 12 ST S

W 11 ST S

S 218W
AV E

S 2
17

 W
 PL

S 2
14

 W
 AV

E

S 2
19

 W
 AV

E

S 2
15

 W
 AV

E

W 12 ST S

W 14 ST S

W 11 ST S

S 2
21

 W
 AV

E

S 2
20

 W
 AV

E

S 2
18

 W
 AV

E

S 2
18

 W
 AV

E

19-10 10
0 200 400

Feet oCBOA-2943 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021

Subject
Tract

CBOA-2943     1.31



S 2
16

 W
 AV

E

W 14 ST S

W 13 PL S

S 2
17

 W
 AV

E

S 2
18

 W
 AV

E

19-10 10
0 50 100

Feet oCBOA-2943 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021

Subject
Tract

CBOA-2943     1.32



$
'-50'

il,n OEE NO.: FIA 05-20,û¡t8
tlOßfOtGOR; UERLY, CHRISTOPHER S.

CLIEI{r: nRsrIrLç A}lP AB$nâgf SEnMçE$, lNç,
cmuofircAcE
CIMMONWFÅLTH UT.¡D TTTI-E INSURANCE CAilPAÑY
57510

THIS PROPERTY U6 IN ZONE I-SI{ADED' FTOOD }IAZARD
AREA PER F.I.R.TI. COMMUNTY PA}¡EL NO. 4OsJEI G'15H.
AS r¡ST REì¡|SED s/22/9s-

T}IE R'I..LOIVING RECORDED
ÁSSIGÙ{IIEIìIT RECORDED IN

'lryrIITT SI.'FÈ\ZTYINGS COIfiPâ'I\IY
. e&t0 IlSl õõE P¡ÅCE tTtAL |III¡EOX¡ ?al¡t ' (gl!) t0¡l-Og¿4

REGTSTERED t"åitD SURVETOR'S tìtSpECnOil
ruilT FOR IiORTGAGE LOAI.I PURFOSES

T€CEND

--x* FE!{CE
u/E mlrnY EAsnÆilf
DÆ oRÁnneE FAsaÆNr
Y/P gËttRrilc Þoüfr
Ble BURTtD ELECÌRn e

TEI..EPHONE CâBTE
EASflElfr
(AFFROXIMATE
LOCâÎON)
BUil.-DtNC Ur.rE
O{'TB,III.OIIF UHE

EoRt ïou Dto,
e¡¡l ot{E
l-8fiÞ522-65,Êt

I

B.L
O.B.L

*@
,'Ï'þ
lJ!'

INCLUDE THF PROPERTY;
PAGE 52,

î80'

180'

ruff NO. 2348
TEGAL DESCRIPIION AS PROVIDED:

LoT StX (6). BI,OCX FfvE (5), CÆ'¡D|ESnCK BE Cil, ADDmONJIJ|-SA mJNW, StAlE OF
raul^urltll ¡mñ[lâ n T¡F ãFÂ^mñ H¡? lr^ ñË¡ô ¡¡rñ rr¡ratrr li ata! F^it. ôaãa

DOCUI t{Is
Boot( 6762,

II
Ë

Èl

l

25'

37.O'

ORIIE

!!;!E-¡!

s
tl
N

CBOA-2943     1.33



57.6'x 55'

House

2Car

27'

o

8',

?4X40
Proposed

Accessory

Building

66'

5 VIE +goÐ

34'

ì

59',

5

6'

LL.7,

-T
og
J

\

o

to.7

+-

25' Building Line

Above
ground pool

CBOA-2943     1.34



 

 

Case Number: CBOA-2944 
 
Hearing Date: 01/18/2022 1:30 PM 

 
Case Report Prepared by: 
 
Robi Jones 
 

 
Owner and Applicant Information: 
 
Applicant: Justin Liekhus   
 
Property Owner: LAWSON, PATRICIA A 
AND RONALD W 
 

 
Action Requested: Variance to permit a detached accessory building to exceed 750 
square feet in the RS district. (Section 240); Variance to allow a detached accessory 
building to be located in the side yard in an RS district. (Section 420.2.A-2) 
 
 
Location Map: 

 
Tulsa County Comprehensive Land Use Map 

 

 
Additional Information: 
 
Present Use: Residential    
 
Tract Size: 2.31 acres 
 
Location: 7111 W 35 ST S 
 
Present Zoning: RS 
 
Fenceline/Area: Berryhill 
 
Land Use Designation: Existing 
Neighborhood 
 
 
 

 
 

CBOA-2944     2.1



S 75 W AVE

PUD-17

CG

RS-3

RS

AG

AG

AG

RS

CG RS-2

RS

RS-2

AG

RS

AG

AG

RS

AG CS

RS

CS

W 41st ST S

S 6
5th

 W
 A

ve

W 31st ST S

W 34 ST S
S 74 W CT

S ROLLI NG OAKS DR

W 35 PL S

W 34 PL S

W 38 ST S

W 39 ST S

W 35 ST S

W 40 ST S

S 7
2 W

 AV
E

W 37 ST S

W 36 ST S

W 33 ST S

S 6
8 W

 AV
E

S 7
3 W

 AV
E

S 74 W AVE

S 71 W AVE

SILV
ER OAK DR

S
69

W
CT

S 74 W
PL

S 7
6W

AV
E

S ROLLINGOAKS DR

W 36 ST S

S 7
1 W

 AV
E

W 34 ST S

SROLLINGOAKS DR

S 7
5 W

 AV
E

W 34 PL S

W 35 ST S

W 33 ST S

W 39 ST S

S76W
A VE

19-12 19
0 200 400

Feet oCBOA-2944

SUBJECT TRACT

LEGEND
Sand Springs Corporate Limits

CBOA-2944     2.2



TULSA COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

 
TRS:  9219                                                            CASE NUMBER: CBOA-2944 
CZM:  45             CASE REPORT PREPARED BY:  Robi Jones  
  
HEARING DATE:  01/18/2022 1:30 PM 
 
APPLICANT:  Justin Liekhus 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Variance to permit a detached accessory building to exceed 750 square feet in the 
RS district. (Section 240); Variance to allow a detached accessory building to be located in the side yard in 
an RS district. (Section 420.2.A-2) 
 
LOCATION:  7111 W 35 ST S      ZONED:  RS 
 
FENCELINE: Berryhill 
 
PRESENT USE: Residential      TRACT SIZE:  2.31 acres 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  N305.46 E/2 SW SW NE SEC 19 19 12   2.31 ACS, ROLLING OAKS AMD RESUB 
ROLLING OAKS 
 
RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:   
 
Subject Property: None relevant 

Surrounding Property:  
 
CBOA-2817:  The Board approved a Variance to permit a detached accessory building to exceed 
750 square feet in an RS district, on property located at 6902 West 34th Street South. 
 
CBOA-1305 November 1994:  The Board approved a Variance of the maximum 750 sq. ft. for a 
detached accessory building and a Variance to permit an accessory building in the side yard, on 
property located at 6802 West 34th Street South. 

CBOA-434 March 1984:  The Board approved a Variance of the maximum area of 750 sq. ft. for an 
accessory building to permit a 1,400 sq. ft. accessory building in an RS district, on property located 
west of the southwest corner of West 34th Street and 68th West Avenue. 

 
ANALYSIS OF SURROUNDING AREA:  The subject tract is surrounded by RS zoning in a residential 
neighborhood. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 

The applicant is before the Board requesting a Variance to permit a detached accessory building to 
exceed 750 square feet in the RS district. (Section 240); Variance to allow a detached accessory 
building to be located in the side yard in an RS district. (Section 420.2.A-2) 
 
The applicant has provided the following statement: “The property is very large and has plenty of 
room for this garage. There are other garages similar in size in the same area as well.” 

CBOA-2944     2.3



According to the site plan provided with the application, the applicant is proposing to construct a 
new 30’ x 35’ (1050 sq. ft.) detached accessory building in the side yard. Section 240.2.E permits 
accessory buildings in the RS district up to 750 SF of floor area in aggregate.  There are two existing 
accessory buildings. One is 12’ x 19.3’ (231.6 sq. ft.) and the other is 10’ x 12’ (120 sq. ft.), so the 
total square footage in aggregate is approximately 1402 sq. ft. The provision of the Code attempts 
to establish and maintain development intensity of the district, preserve the openness of living 
areas and avoid overcrowding by limiting the bulk of structures.  

The Code states that detached accessory buildings shall not be located in the front or side yard 
(section 420.2). According to the submitted conceptual plan the proposed accessory building will 
be constructed in the side yard; the applicant has requested a Variance to allow the accessory 
building in the side yard.   

If inclined to approve the Board may consider any condition it deems necessary and reasonably 
related to the request to ensure that the proposed accessory building is compatible with and non-
injurious to the surrounding area.  

Sample Motion: 

“Move to _________ (approve/deny) Variance to permit a detached accessory building to exceed 
750 square feet in the RS district. (Section 240); Variance to allow a detached accessory building 
to be located in the side yard in an RS district. (Section 420.2.A-2) 

Finding the hardship to be __________. 

Finding by reason of extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances, which are peculiar 
to the land, structure or building involved, the literal enforcement of the terms of the Code would 
result in unnecessary hardship; that such extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances 
do not apply generally to other property in the same use district; and that the variance to be 
granted will not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the purposes, spirit, and 
intent of the Code, or the Comprehensive Plan.” 

CBOA-2944     2.4



NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID NORTHWEST

QUARTER (S\|V/4 NWa); THENCE N 89' 02' 23- E, ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF

THE SOUTHWEST OUAnreR oF sAlD NORTHWEST QUARTER (SW/4 NW/4), A

DISTANCE OF 1318,52FEET, TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST

QUARTER OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER (SW/4 NW/4); THENCE S 0l' 09' 06"

E, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID NORTHWEST

oûnnreR (sw4 Nwt4), A DtsrANcE oF 559.Gs FEET, To A PoINT THAT ls 759.84

FEET, AS TÍEASURED PERPENDICULARLY, FROM THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID

NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW/4), SAID POINT BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENcE coNTtNUtNG s ô1. 09'06" E, coNTtNUtNG ALoNG THE EAsr LINE oF
THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER (SW/4 NW/4), A

DISTANCE OF 759.85 FEET, TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST

QUARTER OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER (SW/4 NW/a); THENCE S 89'04' 33"

w, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW/4)' A
OI-STA¡¡CE OF 329.63 FEET, TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE EAST HALF

OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID NORTHWEST

QUARTER (E/2 E/2 SW/4 NWa); THENCE N 0l'09' O6nnw, ALONG THE WEST LINE

OF THE EAST HALF OF THE EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID

NORTHWEST QUARTER (Er2Etz SW/4 NW/4), A DISTANCE OF 759.85 FEET, TO A
potNT THAT ts 259.84 ÈEET, AS MEASURED pERPENDIcULARLY, FROM THE

SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHWEST QUARTER (Nw/a); THENCE N 89' 04' 33" E,

PARALLEL WITH AND 759.84 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID

NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW/4), A DTSTANCE OF 329.63 FEET, TO THE POINT OF

BEGtNNtNc. sAtD TRAdT oF LAND coNTAtNtNG 5.75 AcRES / 250,465.01

SQUARE FEET., OF TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA

2817-Tammv Rotert FIL E C$PT
Action Requested:
@detachedacceSSorybuildingtoexceed750squarefeetinan
nS Oistt¡ct (Section 240.2-E). LOGATION:6902 West 34th Street South

Presentation:
rcen nrte.t, Og02 West 34th Street, Tulsa, OK; stated the neighbors on the north side of

34th Street have no restriction requirements; they can build as large as they wish and

they do. The neighbors on the south side of 34th Street have a restriction of 750 feet.

The neighbors to the east and to the west have both been before the Board to build larger

building-s. Mr. Rotert stated he purchased the house right out of high school and it was

on¡y 5ã5 square feet in size. He has increased that house footage to be about 7,000

sqúare feet. The outbuildings have been built over the years with what he could afford

and now he is in the position to raze them all and build one nice building which he would

make look like an authentic barn with full sized windmill and a silo. Mr. Rotert stated he

would like the property to look like a farm property. The position of the proposed building

will be nesled againsi the hillwith a restricted view from the road, but it does not take any

of the trees away.

osl19l2020l#482 (20)

CBOA-2944     2.5



oßoT-,48r7 hEuH ËitlPY

Mr. Charney asked staff if the property was in a platted sub-division. Ms. Jones stated

the request is due to the property being inside an RS District, it is not in a platted sub-

division.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Rotert if his lot size was 1.85 acres. Mr. Rotert answered

affirmatively.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Rotert about the height of the barn. Mr. Rotert stated that to the

top of the róoster it will be below 35 feet. With a gambrel roof, he will probably have to

reduce the width of the building. He would like to do 36 feet wide on the barn structure

but he does not believe he will be able to do so. The footage will not change because

the barn he has chosen has the gambrel roof to look like a barn and for it to be proportional

there will be a lean-to that comes out one side that will meet the 36 feet. Mr. Rotert stated

that if he maintains a 30 to 32-foot width he can keep the point of the rooster below 35

feet.

Mr. Johnston asked Mr. Rotert what type of exterior materials he would be using. Mr.

Rotert stated that he plans to build a steel building and use corrugated metal for the roof,

then he will use saw mill oak on the front because he wants the front to look like a barn,

and then R panel metal will be used on the two sides which is what the neighbors have;

his panels will be grey in color.

lnterested Parties:
There were no interested parties present

Gomments a Cluestions:
None

Board Action:
On MOT¡ON of HUTCHINSON, the Board voted 4-0-0 (Charney, Crall, Hutchinson,

Johnston "aye"; no "r'ìays"; no "abstentions"; Dillard "absent") to APPROVE the request

for a Varianðe to permit a detached accessory building to exceed 750 square feet in an

nS Oistrict lSection 240.2-E), subject to conceptual plan 13.11 in the agenda packet.

Once the new building is completed all the other out-buildings will be razed. The Board

has found the hardship to be the large tract of land, 1.8 acres. ln granting a Variance,

the Board must find that by reason of extraordinary or exceptional conditions or

circumstances which are peculiar to the land, structure or building involved, the literal

enforcement of the terms of the Code would result in unnecessary hardship; that such

extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances do not apply generally to other

property ¡n ilre same use district; and that the variance to be granted will not cause

substantial detriment to the public good or impair the purposes, spirit, and intent of the

Code, or the Comprehensive Plan; for the following property:

Fj264 3305.8 NE SW NE SEC 19 19 I2 1.853ACS, OF TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF

OKLAHOMA

\slr9l2o20l#482 (2r)

CBOA-2944     2.6



F iLil, tt FY COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTIT{ËNT
MINUTES of Meeting No. 174

Tuesday, November 15, 1994, 1:30 p.m
County Commission Room

Room 1 19
County Administration Building

MEMBERS PRESENT MEMBERS ABSENT STAFF PRESENT TTI{ËRË PRËffiËhIT

Eller
Looney
Tyndall, Chairman

Alberty
Walker

Moore
Russell

Glenn, Building
lnspection

The notice and agenda of said meeting were posted in the Office of the County Clerk on

Monday, November 14, 1994, at 10:05a.m., aswell as in the ReceptionArea of the INCOG

offices.

After declaring a quorum present, Chairman Tyndaii called the meeting to order ai 1:39 p.m'

MINUTES:
On MOTION of ELLER, the Board voted 3-0-0 (Eller, Looney, Tyndall, "aye"; no

"nays"; no "abstentions"; Alberty, Walker, "absent") to APPROVE the Minutes of

October 18, 1994 (No. 173).

NEW APPLICATqNS

qase No. 1305

Action Requested:
Variance of thã maximum 750 sq ft for a detached accessory building and a
variance to permit an accessory building in the side yard - SECTION 240.

PERM|TTED YARD OBSTRUCTIONS - Use Unit 6, located 6802 West 34th street

South.

Presentation:
The applicant, Michael Patton, 6802 West 34th Street, submitted a plot plan

(Exhibit A-2) and informed that he is proposing to construct an accessory building

on a two-acre tract, which will be large enough to allow him to restore antique cars

and build a small aircraft. Photographs (Exhibit A-1) were submitted.

Comments and Suesiions:
tothesizeofthenewstructure'andtheapplicantreplied

that the building will be 30' bY 40'.

I l: l5:94:174(l)

\r,.[
CBOA-2944     2.7



Case No. 1305 (continued)
ln response to Mr. Tyndall, Mr. Patton informed that there is an accessory building

across the street that is similar in size (30' by 48'), and one to the east thât is 30'by
40'. He informed that the proposed building will be constructed of metal sheeting

and will be 14' in height.

Mr. Looney inquired as to the height of the overhead door, and the applicant replied

that a 10' by 10'door will be installed.

Mr. Looney asked the applicant if any type of commercial activity will be conducted

in the building, and Mr. Patton replied that the building will be for his personal use

only.

ln response to Mr. Looney, the applicant stated that all activity will be inside the

building and there will be no outside storage of material.

Mr. Tyndall inquired as to the amount of noise created by the airplane engine, and

the applicant advised that the aircraft will have a four-cylinder engine, which is
comparable to those installed in automobiles.

Board Action: _
On MOTION of LOONEY the Board voted 3-04 (Eller, Looney, Tyndall, "aye"; no

"nayg"; nO "abstentions"; Alberty, Walker, "absent") to APPROVE a Variance of the

maximum 750 sq ft for a detached accessory building and a variance to permit an

accessory building in the side yard ' SECTION 24O. PERMITTED YARD

OBSTRUCTIONS - Use Unit 6; per plan submitted; subject to no outside storage

and no commercial activity on the property; finding that there are numerous large

accessory buildings in the neighborhood; and finding a hardship demonstrated by

the larga size of [he tract (approx. 2 acres) and the rural nature of the area; and

¡ndinglhat approval of the request will not cause substantial detriment to the public

good, or violate the spirit and intent of the Code; on the following described

property:

west 240., S/2, NW4, SE/4, NE/4, less north 25" Section 19, T-19-N, R-12-E,

Tulsa County, Oklahoma.

Case No. 1306

Action Reouested:
@ntopermitasingle.widemobilehomeinanAG-Rzoneddistrict,a

variance to permit two dwelling units on one lot of record - SECTION 310.

PRINCIPAL USES PËRñ/iITTED Iñ¡ THE AGRICULTUR,E DISTRICTS ANd

SECTION 208. ONE-SINGLE.FAMILY DWELLING PER LOT OF RECORD'USE

Unit 6/9, located 11635 North 97th East Avenue.

I 1: t5:94:174(2)

13.5
CBOA-2944     2.8



Case No . 433 ( cont'i nued )

Mr. Ajberty agreed that there is no locational criteria that has been
presented thai would make this a bad locatjon for a church other than
the fact that the immediate property owners are not'in favor of it.

Mr. Marti n moved that thi s app'l i cat j on be
strict 'interpretation of the usability of
Department siandards.

Mr. Tyndall asked if there had been a tíme frame presented for the
complätion of the proposed buj'lding. There had not been one. Mr.

Nartin jnformed he has no objection to a tjme frame beìng iniected.
He'is talkjng about the use of tfre property. If it wjll not meet the
Health Depariment requ'irements, then the application should be denjed

Mr. Martin's motion for approval died for the lack of a second.

1.1r. Martjn suggested thatthey continue this until a date that the
applicant couiã have a test'ing of the property to the satisfactjon
oî' whatever agency woul d be requ j red . Thìs 'informati on coul d then
be subnli tted lo the Board. He does not want to see the property
used for this purpose if it is incompatjble with health standards.

Mr. Gardner suggested that thjs case could be continued for one month

wjth the requ'iiãment that the appljcant meet wjth the Health Department
ãnd fjnd out if the ex'istjng system js meeting the needs of the congrega-
tjon and if the land will handle a new faci'lìty.

Mr. Tyndall moved that th'is application be denied, but this motion died
for the lack of a second.

Board Ac+"i on:
ffiNofMARTINandSEc0NDbyTYNDALL,theBoardvoted3-0-0

(ÀlUertV, Martin, Tyndaì'ì , "aye"; no "¡qys"; no "abstenticns'r; Walker'
ùjner, i'ábsent")'to continue case No. 433 to the Apri'l 13, 1984'
meeti ng.

Addi ti onal Comments:
l4r. Alberty recomme nded that the applicant check wjth the Health Depart-
ment before the next meeting.

Case No. 434

Acti on ested

approved,
this by a

subject to the
l1 proper Health

Presentati on :

ar ance -
Unit 1206 -
for an acces
in an RS Dìs
nf tho Rl¡l cn

A. B. Maxwe
Irt-l tr) and
cl ass'ic-typ
faci I'ity wi
c'ial use.
are other l

ction 240.2 (e) Yards - Permjtted Yard Obstructions - use

uór.it for a'várjance of the maximum Area of 750 sq' ft'
óry Uuilding to permit a 1,400 sq. ft. accessory bu1lding
iiät un¿er ine pi^ovisjons of Section 1670, located west

R

s
t
rner of bJest 34th Street and 68th West Avenue

ll, 7l0B hlest 34th Street, submitted a plot plan (Exhjbit
iniormed he wants to use this bui'ld1ng to store antique and

e cars. The cars are already compìetely restored' The

ll be built to hold 9 cars and will be strictly a noncommer-

The subjeçt tract is 3 acres minus the road easement. There

arge acðessory bujldings in the area. He w1ll be able to

3.16.84:45(15) l3,V
CBOA-2944     2.9



Case No. 434 ( conti nued )

Protestants: None.

Board Action:

--T-ilqoTIONty
ll

Case No. 435

Presentation:
l^Jalter D.

Variance - Sectìon 208 - One Sin
Use Units 1206 and ]209 - Reques
(l house, 2 mobile homes) Per lo
the provisions of Section 1670'
West Avenue and West lTth Street

Family Dwelling Per Lot of Record -
r a vãrjance to Permit 3 dwellings
record in an RM-Z District under

ted south of the Nt corner of 75th

, Sand Spri ngs , 'informed he woul d

ture mother-in-law's ProPertY.

meet with all the required setbacks. None of the surrounding. property
owners are oppose¿ to the appljcation. The buildjng wìli be built of
rough cedar io match hjs house and will have a compos]llon roof. .It
wiìí proOably be rocked haìfway up. He jnformed he w'ill service the

vehjcles whjch js a customary accessory use.

Comments:
ffi.rdnersuggestedthattheBoardconditjonthistothestorageof

opetuUle vehjcíõs (classic show automobi les) '

of MARTIN and SECOND bY TYNDALL, the Board voted 3-0-0
( Al ber Martin, Tyndall, "aye"; no' 'nays " ; no "abstentions t^Jal keril.

Wi nes , absent") to approve a Variance ( Sect i on 240.2 (e ) Yards

Permitted Yard Obstructions under the provisions of Use Unit 1206)

of the maximum area of 750 sq. ft. for an accessory build i ng to Permi t
a I,400 sq. ft. accessory buildìng in an RS District under the Provi-
sions of Section 1670, subiect to thjs buiìciirrg never being used for
.i noperabl e vehi cl es , on the fol I owj ng descrì bed property:

The r¡Jest 396'of the South 305'8'of the NE/4 of the ShJ/4 of the

NE/4 of Sectioñ lg, Township 19 North, Range 12 East of the Indjan
Base and Meridian, Tulsa County, State of Qk]ahoma, accordjng to
the U. S. Government Survey thereof.

Action Requested:
Specìai fxception - Section 410 - Prìncipal Uses Permitted'in Res'idential

Districts - use uni t :tr:ag - Request for an exception to pgryit a mobile

home in an RM-2 Djst¡ict under the provisions of Section 1680'

gl e-
tfo
L ^CL UI

I oca

I 'ike to move a

There are other
up the proPertY
lives in the ho
mobile home wil
her daughtei- do
mrìnêv rrnti I the
test approved.

Nel son, 4348 Sunburst East
mob ile home on h'is fu
mobile homes in the area They do not P lan to splìt

Mr. Nelson's future mother- in-law info rmed that she

use and her son I i ves j n the ex'isti ng mobile home. This
lbe for her daughter and Mr. llelson She informed that
es not i ntend tc I 'ive there forever. They wi I I save thei r
.v are able to bu.Y a house. TheY have had a percolatjon

Pr"otestants: None.

Comments and esti ons :

ones su t
they voted in a Pub'l
"F-l " ) .

aletterofreferralfromsandSpringswhjchstated
j c hearing not to oppose th'is app'ljcation (Exhìb jt

? 1Â R4:45116) 13. 'tCBOA-2944     2.10



CBOA-2944     2.11



CBOA-2944     2.12



S 75 W AVE

W 41st ST S

S 6
5th

 W
 A

ve

W 31st ST S

W 34 ST S
S 74 W CT

S ROLLI NG OAKS DR

W 35 PL S

W 34 PL S

W 38 ST S

W 39 ST S

W 35 ST S

W 40 ST S

S 7
2 W

 AV
E

W 37 ST S

W 36 ST S

W 33 ST S

S 6
8 W

 AV
E

S 7
3 W

 AV
E

S 74 W AVE

S 71 W AVE

SILV
ER OAK DR

S
69

W
CT

S 74 W
PL

S 7
6W

AV
E

S ROLLINGOAKS DR

W 36 ST S

S 7
1 W

 AV
E

W 34 ST S

SROLLINGOAKS DR

S 7
5 W

 AV
E

W 34 PL S

W 35 ST S

W 33 ST S

W 39 ST S

S76W
A VE

19-12 19
0 200 400

Feet oCBOA-2944 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021

Subject
Tract

CBOA-2944     2.13



W 34 ST S

W 35 PL S

W 34 PL S

S 7
2 W

 AV
E

S 7
1 W

 AV
E

W 35 ST S

19-12 19
0 50 100

Feet oCBOA-2944 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021

Subject
Tract

CBOA-2944     2.14



I
I Edaiar¡al

èsq/ 2\4tc' glads @ 1b" ¿'¿
l,"t lt1b o5BÊÅelia.uallsheahLq
I tou""..p
I e¡.t

\l
t\

I

l
l

I

l

)./
:1

./1
l

I

I

Ea,f
bh2ptt h @24 .'.

5naù1¿e Êffi1 and bs.ia.
1116 O5Btodsheâhinq.

þ

ãsE6L n.È

H tî
3 P'sH u"
9Êì

g

Eo

Eç
Bì;

à

5

,
á

DATE:

9-23-2t

SCALE:

5HEfr:

À-1

cBoa-2s& 3.15

CBOA-2944     2.15



GREENSCAPES OUTDOOR
LAt SON RESDENCE - Tlll h 35ll-] 5T, TULSA, OK

NEIA GARAGE AND DRIVEIAAY 5IÍE PLAN

1/8" = l'-o" ocr.22,202t ,JANUARY 3, 2022

ALICIA O5EI

Eßrure6(ruffiN)

\

'{"
I

I

I

Ia

F

5TßGEÐ

reftffiNru

æftRF$M

r¿ñ

æñ
Dl:@Y

reM@AB

ffiÀcf M aÎ

(MW.24 X 24)
(æøffsFæ
DRMGE OWMd

5ffiæ ruÆ
À5Mm

STH 5Tffi

d¡r H
reñ

moxRomllw

M]ru
I)w@

6@fffi
ffi

lWSWE

ffiNftrE
(f o tr Rûþw)

L---,u

51ffi É
f@fD I

35rt9

Eþft ru85
lrum)

a

Ef4øPæm5lmøroOT
cBoa-20& 3.16

CBOA-2944     2.16



Case Number: CBOA-2945 

Hearing Date: 01/18/2022 1:30 PM 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Robi Jones 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Ryan Strode   

Property Owner: BLUE FLAME 47 INC 

Action Requested: Modification to a previously approved site plan (CBOA-2888) for a 
church (Use Unit 5) in an AG district (Section 310 Table 1). 

Location Map: 

Tulsa County Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

Additional Information: 

Present Use: Church    

Tract Size: 37.95 acres 

Location: 12100 E 171 ST S 

Present Zoning: AG 

Fenceline/Area: Bixby 

Land Use Designation: Rural Agriculture 

CBOA-2945     3.1



AG

AG

AG

AG

£¤64

S G
AR

NE
TT

 R
D

E 171st ST S

17-14 32
0 300 600

Feet oCBOA-2945

SUBJECT TRACT

LEGEND
Bixby Corporate Limits

CBOA-2945     3.2



TULSA COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

TRS:  7432 CASE NUMBER: CBOA-2945 
CZM:  68 CASE REPORT PREPARED BY:  Robi Jones  

HEARING DATE:  01/18/2022 1:30 PM 

APPLICANT:  Ryan Strode 

ACTION REQUESTED:  Modification to a previously approved site plan (CBOA-2888) for a church (Use Unit 
5) in an AG district (Section 310 Table 1).

LOCATION:  12100 E 171 ST S      ZONED:  AG 

FENCELINE: Bixby 

PRESENT USE: Church      TRACT SIZE:  37.95 acres 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  LOT 1 BLOCK 1, BLUEFLAME47 ADDITION 

RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:   

Subject Property:  

CBOA-2888 April 2014:  The Board approved a Modification to a previously approved site plan 
(CBOA-2497) for a church in an AG district, subject to conceptual plan. The building is to be 20680 
square feet, at property located at 12100 East 171st Street North. 

CBOA-2497 April 2014:  The Board approved a Special Exception to allow a church with accessory 
uses (Use Unit 5) in an AG district. This approval will allow up to three buildings in an AG District as 
designated on a submitted site plan, subject to conceptual plans on pages 6.5 and 6.6. 
Construction is to be in accordance with the general conceptual site plan that has been provided 
the Board. The larger gathering building would be for church offices and the church ministries, and 
is to be used no more than twice a year, up to four or five days at a time, on property located south 
of Highway 64/East 171st St. S. between S. Garnett Road & South 129th East Avenue. 

ANALYSIS OF SURROUNDING AREA:  The subject tract is surrounded by AG zoning with what appears to 
be used for agriculture with a smattering of residential uses. 

STAFF COMMENTS:  

The applicant is requesting a Modification to a previously approved site plan (CBOA-2888) for a church 
(Use Unit 5) in an AG district (Section 310 Table 1).  

In 2014, the Board approved a request for a special exception to allow a Church with accessory uses (Use 
Unit 5) in an AG District (Section 310, Table 1) per the conceptual plan. In 2021, the applicant came back 
before to Board to request a modification of the previously approved conceptual site plan. The new site 
plan was approved. 

CBOA-2945     3.3



The applicant is requesting that the Board modify the site plan approved in 2021 to include a new 60 x 46’ 
Pavilion to the south of the existing building.  

If inclined to approve the Board may consider any condition it deems necessary and reasonably related to 
the request to ensure that the proposed use is compatible with the surrounding area.   

Sample Motion for Modification: 

“Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Modification to a previously approved site plan (CBOA-2888) for a 
church (Use Unit 5) in an AG district (Section 310 Table 1). 

Subject to the following conditions (if any): __________. 

Finding the proposed modification is compatible with and non-injurious to the surrounding area and meets 
the previously granted Board relief or meets the zoning requirements, per code.” 

CBOA-2945     3.4



CBOA-2945     3.5



CBOA-2945     3.6



CBOA-2945     3.7



CBOA-2945     3.8



CBOA-2945     3.9



CBOA-2945     3.10



CBOA-2945     3.11



CBOA-2945     3.12



£¤64

S G
AR

NE
TT

 R
D

E 171st ST S

17-14 32
0 300 600

Feet oCBOA-2945 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021

Subject
Tract

CBOA-2945     3.13



<%tueÞÈ14

<+n€uRtu^

lËElå

o
F

x

g

9

11.Ø UÆ
__l

I

lò

I8
Ig
,E

m
td
tÀ

I

i

I

lÃ

lBrs

lË'

l$lËlïlårËlF

/^f
./ory't

L

Þ=

IIR

llË

llË

124¿.54 PROæfr LrG

ì

ÐLUE FLA!^4E 41
NEA PAVILLION

12100 E. 111sL 9T.
ÐtxBY, oR 1400Ò

$a
J

b
I

(no
1¿nrì
-onr>>r-zt-

0
ô
>
ñ;
(1

z
9
m
o

q
o

8qlJo-m
m
n ffi ffi

CBOA-2945     3.14



]26.5q PrcPËRTY LINE

11.æ',U.

l4rdä
19 lo

St=

ll$*

JI'

ilI5ÍÑó PARKINé

9çç
mx

rl>zzôm'
f¡
m

l@r¡lF!

lFlùl*

ö!
oo

Ëü
:d

¡
$
I

l$rxËIrl<t;
19 lõ

l"?
/,n

/>l
,ry

,/-i*
///

gISfNó PARKINó

I

ELUE FLAVE 41
NEI,\ PAVILLION

121OO E. |11sL 9T.
BlxBY, OK 1400Ð

li
l¡l

llrq
let9
lalo
lot2
l0

(n
a
-\

0
ñ
F

9r9
T4[
iFü

(¡
o
T
Ln

(-fl

z
oI
rn
U

g

"Roluo-üt
¡n
Ã

CBOA-2945     3.15



 

 

Case Number: CBOA-2946 
 
Hearing Date: 01/18/2022 1:30 PM 

 
Case Report Prepared by: 
 
Robi Jones 
 

 
Owner and Applicant Information: 
 
Applicant: Jennifer Jefferson   
 
Property Owner: LIVINGSTON, CHERYL 
JANE 
 

 
Action Requested: Special Exception to allow Use Unit 5, Community Services and 
Similar Uses, to allow a Youth Day Camp in an AG district (Section 1205); and a 
Variance from the all-weather parking surface requirement (Section 1340.D). 
 
 
Location Map: 

 
Tulsa County Comprehensive Land Use Map 

 

 
Additional Information: 
 
Present Use: Residential    
 
Tract Size: 2.26 acres 
 
Location: 14603 S LEWIS AV E 
 
Present Zoning: AG 
 
Fenceline/Area: Bixby 
 
Land Use Designation: Medium Density 
Residential 
 
 
 

 

CBOA-2946     4.1



AG

AG

IL

RE AGCS !(67

S L
EW

IS 
AV

E

E 151st ST S

17-13 17
0 250 500

Feet oCBOA-2946

SUBJECT TRACT

LEGEND
Bixby Corporate Limits

Glenpool Corporate Limits

CBOA-2946     4.2



TULSA COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

 
TRS:  7317                                                            CASE NUMBER: CBOA-2946 
CZM:  61             CASE REPORT PREPARED BY:  Robi Jones  
  
HEARING DATE:  01/18/2022 1:30 PM 
 
APPLICANT:  Jennifer Jefferson 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Special Exception to allow Use Unit 5, Community Services and Similar Uses, to 
allow a Youth Day Camp in an AG district (Section 1205); and a Variance from the all-weather parking 
surface requirement (Section 1340.D). 
 
LOCATION:  14603 S LEWIS AV E      ZONED:  AG 
 
FENCELINE: Bixby 
 
PRESENT USE: Residential      TRACT SIZE:  2.26 acres 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  PRT NW SW BEG 433.84S NWC NW SW TH S415 E525 N415 W525 POB LESS 
W50 & LESS N207.5 THEREOF SEC 17 17 13  2.26AC,  
 
RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:   
 
Subject Property: None Relevant 

Surrounding Property:  

CBOA-2897 July 2021:  The Board approved a Special Exception to allow Use Unit 5, Community 
Services and Similar Uses, to allow a youth day camp in an AG District; and a Variance from the all-
weather parking surface requirement with conditions, on property located at 14601 South Lewis 
Avenue East & 14775 South Lewis East. 

 
ANALYSIS OF SURROUNDING AREA:  The subject tract is surrounded by AG zoning. There is IL zoning 
located nearby to the northwest. Surrounding uses appear to be a mix of residential, agricultural, and the 
related youth day camp to the north and south. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 

The applicant is before the Board requesting a Special Exception to allow Use Unit 5, Community 
Services and Similar Uses, to allow a Youth Day Camp in an AG district (Section 1205); and a 
Variance from the all-weather parking surface requirement (Section 1340.D). 
 
A Special Exception is required as the proposed Youth Day Camp (Use Unit 5) is a use which is not 
permitted by right in the AG district because of potential adverse affects, but which if controlled in 
the particular instance as to its relationship to the area and to the general welfare, may be 
permitted.  The proposed use must be found to be compatible with the surrounding area. 
 
The applicant submitted site plans indicating that there is a home with a detached garage located 
on the property and the applicant is proposing to construct a 65’ x 42’ barn east of the home to be 

CBOA-2946     4.3



used in connection with the youth day camp located on properties to the north and south (Approved 
in July 2021 – CBOA-2891). 
 
The proposed parking lot will have a gravel surface. The Code requires all parking areas be paved 
with an all-weather material to maintain a minimum level of aesthetics, and to control air-borne 
particulates like dust. The applicant has requested a variance to allow a gravel parking area on the 
site.   
 
If inclined to approve, the Board may consider any condition it deems necessary and reasonably 
related to the request to ensure that the current and future use of the subject lot is compatible with 
the surrounding area.   
 
Sample Motion: 
 
“Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Special Exception to allow Use Unit 5, Community Services 
and Similar Uses, to allow a Youth Day Camp in an AG district (Section 1205).  
 

Subject to the following conditions (including time limitation & hours of operation, if any): 
__________________________. 
 
Finding the Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code, and 
will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

 
Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Variance from the all-weather parking surface requirement 
(Section 1340.D). 
 

Subject to the following conditions (if any): _______. 
 
Finding the hardship to be __________. 
 
Finding by reason of extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances, which are 
peculiar to the land, structure or building involved, the literal enforcement of the terms of 
the Code would result in unnecessary hardship; that such extraordinary or exceptional 
conditions or circumstances do not apply generally to other property in the same use 
district; and that the variance to be granted will not cause substantial detriment to the 
public good or impair the purposes, spirit, and intent of the Code, or the Comprehensive 
Plan.” 

 

CBOA-2946     4.4



Mr. Hutchinson asked Mr. Thomas if his pre-rolts had the plastic tip' Mr' Thomas

answered affirmativelY'

Mr.HutchinsonaskedMr.Thomas.ifhewasgoingtodoanyothertypeoflight
*"tti".ttiing. IMr' Thomas answered no'

lnterested Paties:
There were no rnteiested parties present'

Comments and Questions:
None.

"HUTGH|NSoN, 
the Board voted 5-0.0 (Charnev, Crall, Hutchinson'

Johnston, Tisdale ";;;,;;n;;nays"; no [nrt"ntions"; non"i'nt"nt") to APPROVE the

request to, 
" 

u"" v?rrln"J to 
"iro* 

u."-[r"nii z's, r-ig'ht Manufacturing rnoustry, to permit

a medical mariluanffiSssing facititvi; ;s bitirict lsection 1225)' subject to

conceptual plan Z.f f ""itn" agJnda pa;k;. Td manufacturing is to be limited to the

pre_rors onry. The ilil ;;touno'tn!'riaiorn,p t" be thai it iJ a very quiet operation'

Finding that by |."rr-on oi"xtraoroinary"oi""*piional conditions or circumstances'

which are peculiar;il; tand, structr[ ". 
orir,ing invorvJ' in" rit"t"r enforcement of

the terms of the CJ";;iO iesutt i. ;;;;;fr narosnip; tnat sucrr extraordinary or

exceptional conditions or circumstrn"", Oo not afipty g"n"i'ff' to other property in the

same use district; 
"nJ'..,"i 

the variancl"il;;ld"witt not cause substantial

detriment to the pubtic good o,r 11ng1r_ii" ;r;q";;""; spirit, ano intent of the code' or the

ffi;ilrr;ntiu"'pr"n; f6r the followins propertv:

LoT6BLK3,GoLDENHILLADDN,oFTULSAcoUNTY,STATEoFoKLAHoMA

28e1-JenniferJefferson fllt C$PY

ffiallowUseUnit5,CommunityServicesandSimilarUses,to
a'ow a youtf6fcamp in 

"n.ni'oiiii.iiS""tion.f 
z-os);Variancq from the all-

weather parking surface ,"quir"i..fni'id"Jti"t rUoSf ''GtErlOru: 14601 South

Lewis nu"n#'E"'JaiZzTf; south Lewis Avenue East

Pn*",*o"rson,14775SouthLewisAvenue,Bixby,,oK;statedsheownsand
directs Eight Acre Su*r", Camp uniii it it't" tutp's 20th vear' The program rs

outdoor based 
"nJi, 

to, elementary "g; ;nildr"n. sh" has teachers and teacher

assistants *rat woir-w''in n", *n"n in]'JJ*p i. fp""' sne would like to expand the

indoor area as ";';l;il";ui 
,p"." # l";;ri anJ'snacx time or when it is rainins '

06r15t2}21 t#495 (5)

CBOA-2946     4.5



FIL I COPY

0"ffiA-XEtl l

Mr.CharneyaskedMs.Jeffersonifthereweretwoparcelsinvolvedinthisrequest.Ms.
Jefferson stated rhat 1477sis her r...or" 

"ootess 
and there is an additional lot that is not

mentioned ano srre ooes not use, and the 14601 is her daughter's house'

Mr.CharneyaskedMs.Jeffersonwheretheincreasedactivityisgoingtooccur'Ms.
J"tf#on siated that it will take place at 14601'

Mr. Charney asked Ms. Jefferson if she had heard from any of the neighbors about her

request. Ms. Jefferson stated that eve-ry"r" ir iufportive. she has two neighbors that

the children and ,t*r*"rr across ft"ir itiu"*"y, ino their concern was libility if a child

ishurt.Ms'Jeffersonstatedsheisaddinganinsuranceridernamingthoseneighbors
as insured to Protect them'

Mr. Hutchinson asked Ms. Jefferson if she ran the camp only during t$,:'.*t"r' Ms'

Jefferson answered affirmativerv stating inai.h" is licensed"through DHS for up to 120

children a day. She is also open Outind tptNg bt"ak,,flll break and Ctrristmas break'

She averages aboul gO to 10b children"" b"V-Ouringlhe summer' She also has a

cookout one night a year at the 
"nO 

tut1n"ito' thifamilies' She does not want to

increase the number of children but she does want more space for them' During the

school year, camp, 
"r" 

larger tnan evei before and there were 30 to 40 children a day'

Mr.HutchinsonaskedMs.Jeffersonaboutheroperatinghours'.Ms'Jeffe^rsonstated
that her operating horr, 

"r" 
z:oo n.nlr. to 6:00 p'wt' ano those hours do not change'

lnterested Parties:
ffisted parties present'

Comments and Questions:
None.

Board Action:
on MoTloN of GHARNEY, the Board voted 5-0-0 (Charney, Crall,..Hutchinson,

Johnston, Tisdale "aye"; no "nays"; no 'abrtentions;; non" "abtent") to APPROVE the

request for a Special.Exception to atrowtli" unit 5, Community Services and Similar

Uses, to allow a youth day camp in 
"n'iC 

Oistrict ('section nriq;Varianqp from the all-

weather parking ,urf"." ,Lquirement iSl"t'"t f 31i,?) The camp use will be during

the summer and during schoor nr""r.Jiur'-"n ine ctriroren are out of schoor. The hours of

operation will be ZOO l.Vf . to 6:00 P.M with one evening allowed during the summer for

a school event. ftiL Board finds the rtriOtrtip to be theiatge nature of the tract and

temporary use of the parking areas, primarirv in lhe summer months. Finding the

Speciat Exception witi be in harmony *i't-tnL ipirit and intent of the Code and will not

be injurious to the neighborhood or otilerwiie d'etrimentar to the pubric welfare' Finding

by reason of extraorl'in"w oi"*ceptional conditions or circumstances' which are

pecutiar to the r"nJ, .tiu"iui" o' oiiro]ng"'i.";ld, the literal enforcement of the terms of

the code would result in unnecesr"ry nirirhip; that such extraordinary or exceptional

conditions or circumstances do not a'pply generally to other property in the same use

06t1512021 l#495 (6)

CBOA-2946     4.6



i}fsrA 
-AY(ir FILE CSPY

district; and that the Variance to be granted will not cause substantial detriment to the

public good or impair the purposes, sfirit' and intent of the Code' or the Comprehensive

Plan; for the following ProPertY:

PRT NW SW BEG 908.845 & sOE NWC SWTH E1270 5411'16 W765 N381'16 W5O5

N30 To poB SEc 11 1713 7.569ALS; Fnr SW ?E-G e38'84S & 50E Nwc SW TH

Esos 3381.iG w244.so N351.46 wzeti.so N30 To PoB SEc 17 17 13 2'318ACS;

s207.50 N641.34 wszs NW SW LESS W50 FOR RD SEC 17 17 13 2'262ACS' OF

TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA

2893-Kenneth Johnson

Action Requested:
Use Variancelo-rtto* use Unit 13, Convenience ^Goods 

and services, to permit a

medical marijuana dispensary in the AG District (section 1213)' LOCATION:

7703 West 7th Street South

Presentation:
Kenneth Johnson, 7703 West 7th street, Tulsa, oK; stated he owns 52 acres and he

started his business three years ago with the outdoor grow' He has enlarged the

business and was before the Board tast year to receive approval for processing' At the

last meeting there *"t" 
" 

couple of neigtrOors protesting the request but they are not in

attendance today. He would life to enllrge his businesi again and wou.ld like to have a

medical dispensary on the subject ptop"iy' ln the year since the Board approved the

pro""r.ing,'the sheriff's Department.has never been called, there have been no

ambulance r.unr, 
"nJ 

there have not been any Fire Department runs' The medical

dispensary would o" in 
" 

8'-0" x 40'-0" conei building and he would like to be able to

sellwholesale to the Patients.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Johnson if he currently grows and processes then takes that

product to a different locaiton to sell. Mr. Johnson stated that he has some dispensary

customers that come to him; about 25 sales a week and he also delivers the products to

dispensaries.

Mr. Charney stated that sometimes when he is reviewing a case. in the.rural area for

possible approvalit'r" go"tO may feei that when the public is invited onto a site with a lot

of ingress and egress traffic there 
"r" 

diff"r"nt thoughts about that because it is straying

away from the AG use. Mr. Johnson stated that across the street there is a DVls

shelter and, if 
"nytnNg, 

,ot" of the o*in".t"s that exist in the area have affected the

rural area. The DVIS shelter nas g-a ;olice calls a w9ek, there are ambulances and fire

trucks that come to that site, there are 35-40 cars in the parking lot.every day' Toward

the west the city of Sand springs stops at 1Oth street, Tulsa county picks up at 7th

street and there is a new four-way stop at that corner because there are about 8'000

vehicles that go through that intersectiin Caity; the rural area is not rural any longer and

it is growing. the rural community is disappearing'

06t15t2021 t#495 (7)

CBOA-2946     4.7



!(67

S L
EW

IS 
AV

E

E 151st ST S

17-13 17
0 250 500

Feet oCBOA-2946 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021

Subject
Tract

CBOA-2946     4.8



S L
EW

IS 
AV

E

17-13 17
0 50 100

Feet oCBOA-2946 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021

Subject
Tract

CBOA-2946     4.9



!(67

S L
EW

IS 
AV

E

E 151st ST S

17-13 17
0 250 500

Feet oCBOA-2946

SUBJECT TRACT

LEGEND
Bixby
Future Land Use
" " " " "

" " " " "

" " " " " Rural Agriculture (Unincorporated)

Agricultural

Rural Residential

Low Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

Medium-High Density Residential

High Density Residential

Residential Manufactured Home Park

Mixed Use

Neighborhood Commercial

Commercial

Industrial

Public/Institutional

Recreation and Open Space

Flood District

100 Year Floodplain

CBOA-2946     4.10



14603 S Lewis Ave, Bixby, OK 74008 NOT to Scale

Pruposed  
Eight Acres  
Camp Office 

Residential 
Home 

Detached 
Garage 

Gravel Parking 

Gravel 
Driveway 

North 

Gravel 
Driveway 

85' 

515' 

211' 

9' 

79' 

33' 

30' 
54' 

7' 

30' 
28' 

42' 

65' 

80' 

259' 

Barn 

34' 

64' 

212' 

81' 

90' 

85' 

16' 

45' Easement 

CBOA-2946     4.11


	2022-01-18-CBOA-Agenda.pdf
	CBOA-2943.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	Pages from CBOA-2506.pdf
	Pages from CBOA-2733-2.pdf
	Pages from CBOA-2733.pdf


	CBOA-2944.pdf
	CBOA-2944.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	Pages from CBOA-434.pdf


	1765_001.pdf

	CBOA-2945.pdf
	1766_001.pdf
	CBOA-2945.pdf
	CBOA-2945.pdf
	Pages from CBOA-2888.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	Pages from CBOA-2945.pdf
	Pages from CBOA-2888.pdf




	CBOA-2946.pdf



